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ABOUT CENTRAL HUDSON 

Central Hudson Gas & 
Electric Corporation is an investor
owned utility serving a 2,600
square-mile area of New York State's 
Mid-Hudson Valley. Founded in 
Newburgh in 1900, it was incor
porated in 1926following the 
consolidation of what had been some 
60 small electric and gas companies 
dating as far back as 1850.  

The Central Hudson System 
today comprises 1,386 employees 
serving 252,017 electric and 56,341 
natural gas customers. Our service 
area begins 25 miles north of New 
York City and extends to 10 miles 
south of the state capital, Albany.  
Included are parts of the counties 
of Albany, Columbia, Dutchess, 
Greene, Orange, Putnam, Sullivan 
and Ulster. Major population centers 
include the cities of Poughkeepsie, 
Kingston, Newburgh and Beacon, 
and the Village of Catskill.  
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1YMarch 1, 1991

To My Fellow Shareholders: 

This past year has brought its 
share of successes and disappoint
ments, but as an organization we are 
pleased that the Energy Strategy we 
developed and implemented during 
the 1980s has reduced our depend
ence on foreign oil. The impact of 
rapidly rising fuel oil prices was 
mitigated by the Company's 
significant investment to attain fuel 
diversification. This, in turn, has 
saved our customers millions of 
dollars in avoided fuel costs.  

Earnings per share for 1990 were 
$2.38, an increase of 10 cents, or 4.4 
percent, over 1989. This increase in 
the 1990 earnings resulted primarily 
from the increase in base electric rates 
which became effective on May 24, 
1990 and the very favorable 

.  relationship between sales and 
related production costs which the John E. Mack III Paul J. Ganci 
Company experienced in 1990. Sales 
of electricity within the Company's service territory increased 3.3% during 1990; however, electric 
generation and purchased power only increased I%. Firm sales of natural gas for 1990 remained unchanged 
from 1989 whereas purchases of natural gas were 10%/ less than the prior year.  

As a result of projected improvements in earnings and the resolutioni of uncertainties which arose in our 
last electric rate case, we increased the quarterly dividend rate to 46 cents per share on August 1. This 
represented an increase of 4.5 percent over the previous quarterly rate of 44 cents. Accordingly, dividends 
paid to shareholders in 1990 were $1.80 a share, up 4 cents.  

Another positive development has been the unqualified success of Stewart International Airport. This 
strong regional facility and its associated business park development should continue to help sustain the 
economic growth in the Mid-Hudson Region for some time to come.  

Our success remains rooted in the quality of service we render and our ability to continue to satisfy our 
customers. We remain committed to helping all of our customers use energy in a cost-effective and efficient 
manner. Similarly, we will endeavor to increase shareholder value by meeting or exceeding the goals related 
to Demand Side Management and conservation, promoting higher levels of efficiency in the use of electricity, 
thereby earning the incentives provided by our regulators.  

In summary, we remain optimistic about the growth potential of the region we serve and in our ability 
to provide competitively priced natural gas and electricity to meet the energy needs of our customers.  
The education and skill of our employees remains our greatest asset. Their commitment to quality 
service will help us continue to increase both shareholder 
value and customer satisfaction.  

Very truly yours, 

/ Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer



Our responsibility as a supplier 

of energy has remained constant 
throughout our 90 years of service to 

the Mid-Hudson Valley. It has been 

U .one of providing quality, value and 
service to our customers, of anticipat
ing their needs and ensuring that we 

How we fulfilled that respon

or sibility, however, has always been 

vi4 a dynamic process which requires 
, adapting to new technology, improv

~'-#~ing methods of operations and adjust
0 sr ing to the changing demands of our 

(- q customers and of society itself.  9' The years from the turn of the 
century through the mid-'20s marked 
a period of consolidation, a gradual 

S bringing together of dozens of small, 

independent companies to provide 
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reliable, uniform, affordable service 
to the region.  

The '30s saw us embark on an 
intensive program of rural electrifica
tion to ensure that every home and 
farm which desired it could have the 
benefits of electricity.  

In the '50s, natural gas was intro
duced, replacing the manufactured 
gas which had been used for 100 
years. Natural gas, because of its 
unique, clean-burning characteristics, 
paved the way towards a major 
expansion of our gas business.  

In the '60s, our society became 
concerned that our physical environ
ment was deteriorating. This placed 
even greater importance on our 
tradition of concern for preserving the 
quality of life in the region we serve.  

In the early '70s, in the wake of 
soaring fuel oil prices and supply 
disruptions, greater emphasis was 
placed on the cost and availability 
of energy. We as a Company sought 
opportunities to improve the 
efficiency of how we produced 
energy and to identify options to 
assist our customers in using energy 
more efficiently. Many of our con
cerns regarding the cost and avail
ability of energy resulted from our 
overdependlence as a nation on 
imported oil.  

FOCUS ON QUALITY 

Part of the Quality initiative instituted 
in 1990 was the formation of cross
functional quality action teams to 
develop solutions to issues affecting 
service to our customers. This team 
worked on methods to decrease the 
number of estimated bills. Shown from 
left are Service Supervisor Bob 
Hasbrouck, Office Supervisor Cindy 
Ackley, Customer Relations Manager 
John Checklick and John Mokszycki, 
Manager of Customer Accounting 
and Special Projects.

Our strategy for the '80s was, very 
simply, to reduce our dependence on 
imported oil. As a result of the imple
mentation of our fuel diversification 
strategy, we developed coal, nuclear, 
natural gas and additional hydro
power as alternate fuels. our 
customers benefited as electric prices 
declined from the mid-'80s to 1990.  
At the same time, we continued to 
work to enhance and preserve our 
physical environment.  

That we remain today a healthy 
and competitive investor-owned 
utility is a result of our willingness to 
be innovative, our constant focus on 
offering our customers quality and 
our commitment to protecting the 
environment.  

The '90s will mean even greater 
change. New regulatory initiatives in 
New York State have established a 
comprehensive bidding program 
which will evaluate utility and non
utility supply side options, along 
with demand side options, for 
meeting future customer needs in 
the most cost effective, reliable and 
environmentally compatible manner.  
At the national level, amendments to 
the Clean Air Act will pose major 
environmental compliance chal
lenges. All of these will require that 
we place even greater emphasis on 
how energy is produced and how it 
is used to meet customer needs.  

As we've adjusted to meet the 
challenges posed by the previous 
decades, we are prepared to meet 
those we face in the years to come.



CORPORATE QUALITY/ 
PRODUCTIVITY 

While quality service has always -l , , 

been a hallmark of our corporate % , A 

culture, achieving our goals will k V 

require a renewed emphasis on the 
relationship between the provider .* 
and the customer, both internal , 0 0 A 
and external.  

In 1990, we began this process 
through the introduction of a formal A 
Quality Initiative. The Quality IA 
Initiative recognizes the contribution W 
that each employee can make in '" 
improving quality and productivity.  
It seeks to focus human energy and N 4<' 
organizational resources on the needs 
of the customer. In many instances, 
employees from several functional 
areas will work together to improve 
what we do.  

In establishing this program, we ., 
have called on one of the nation's 
leading consultants in the field of 
quality improvement. Beginning'n. .  
1991, workshops on quality will l -2  .  
participated in by every employee to 
ensure that each continuallyfocuses k ; 
on the needs of his or her; customers. _ S 

We intend to expand the Quality 
Initiative to all parts" 
of our operations as .n 
opportunity to improve 
quality, customer .  
satisfaction'and 
productivity..  

/V



OUR ENERGY STRATEGY 

Meeting future customer energy 
needs in the most economic and 
environmentally sound manner will 
require a variety of approaches. These 
include maximizing the efficiency' 
and reliability of our existing genera
tion; continuing our fuel diversifica
tion; relying upon capacity additions 
from utility and nonutility 
generators; and demand side man
agement, which involves those 
efficiencies we can encourage 
customers to institute.  

As reported in prior years, our 
primary option to meet our projected 
need for increased capacity is through 
acquiring Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corporation's 300-megawatt share of 
the Roseton Generating Plant, begin
ning December 31, 1994. This would 
occur in equal annual installments 
over a 10-year period.  

However, to determine if a more 
economic alternative exists, we will 
seek bids from independent power 
producer s for similar increments of 
capacity. Requests for proposals will 
be sought in 1991 under our bidding 
program, which has been approved 
by the New York State Public 
Service Commission.

To meet customers' short-term 
electric needs, bids will also be 
sought next year for up to 50 mega
watts of supply side capacity addi
tions and up to 20 megawatts of 
demand side management reductions.  

The Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission in late 1990 gave its 
final approval to the Iroquois Gas 
Transmission System proposal to 
bring Canadian gas to New York by 
late 1991. If this project is completed 
as expected, an interconnection with 
our system will make natural gas 
available to the Roseton Plant, which 
presently burns only oil. This would 
provide us an opportunity to substan
tially reduce the amount of oil used 
for generation during the 
nonheating season.  

EFFICIENT ENERGY USE 

Energy efficiency makes sense to 
Central Hudson and to our customers 
whenever it can be demonstrated that 
using less reduces our overall costs 
and provides individual customer 
savings. Improving efficiency means 
that customers can purchase the com
forts and convenience, safety and pro
ductivity that electricity offers for less.  
At the same time, efficient energy use 
stretches our resources and helps to 

FOCUS ON INNOVATION 

Tied into a nationwide network, our 
lightning monitoring system provides 
a computer picture of electrical storms 
moving towards our area. This -early 
warning system " is an important aspect 
of improved emergency planning.  
Studying a storm's progress on the 
screen (recreated in the background) are 
Assistant System Operator Keith Hudak 
and System Operator John Pollack.



preserve our environment, all 
without sacrificing what electricity 
can do to make the quality of life 
better at home and at work.  

During 1990, we expanded our 
efforts to meet our goal of a five 
percent, or 50-megawatt, decrease in 
our forecasted 1995 summer peak.  
A key means of achieving this is 
through incentive payments to com
mercial and industrial customers who 
make improvements in the efficiency 
of lighting, air conditioning systems, 
motors and other electrical 
equipment.  

As a result of our efforts during 
the year, 760 firms initiated or 
completed energy efficiency programs 
which are expected to attain a peak 
demand reduction of 5,000 kilowatts.  
Additionally, three major customers 
have opted for our new curtailable 
electric service classification. This 
provides a credit for reducing usage 
on request during peak demands 
on our system.  

We estimate that the five-year cost 
of these programs to the Company 
from 1991 through 1995 will be 
$53,295,000. The Public Service 
Commission has adopted a special 
rate treatment which provides for the 
recovery of these costs, as well as any 
associated revenue losses. Further, an 
additional return on common equity 
of up to 0.25 percent will be allowed 
as an incentive, based on the success 
and cost-effectiveness of our program.  

FOCUS ON TI-I ENVIRONMENT 

Results Technician I1/c Mike Tracy uses a 
spectrophotometer to check the types and 
quantity of metals in the wastewater 
treatment system at the Roseton 
Generating Plant. This is but one of 
numerous checks we make to ensure that 
in all our operations we adhere to 
stringent state and federal guidelines 
for air and water quality.

We also continue to strongly 
promote energy efficiency for our 
residential customers by offering free 
home energy audits. More than 
60,000 such audits have been com
pleted since this program was begun 
in 1978. Payment incentives are also 
offered to customers who install 
efficient central air conditioning or 
heat pumps and many customers 
qualify for zero-interest loans of up 
to $4,500 for energy-saving 
improvements.  

OPERATING IMPROVEMENTS 

Several programs aimed at 
improving power plant reliability 
and operating efficiency or reducing 
maintenance costs were initiated 
during 1990. Two of these involved 
the development of methods to 
provide timely, more accurate 
assessments of equipment operating 
conditions. This information can be 
used to predict maintenance needs, 
thus reducing labor costs and down
time associated with forced and 
scheduled equipment outages.

i



One program identifies and 
quantifies metal residues found in 
lubricants used in plant motors, 
helping to determine the rate of wear 
on equipment. By monitoring and 
analyzing this data, maintenance 
needs for specific pieces of equipment 

"can be more accurately predicted.  
Moreover, it will enable plant 
operators to remove equipment from 
service in advance of an impending 
failure, thus avoiding costly 
emergency repairs.  

A second program involves the 
on-line monitoring of vibrations 
which occur in the operation of 
certain rotating equipment. Demon
stration units are being installed on 
selected pumps and motors at both 
the Roseton and Danskammer Plants 
to monitor this equipment and 
develop trend data, again to better 
determine the need for and timing 
of maintenance.  

In 1990, we began testing two 
dual-flow travelling screens at the 
intake of the Roseton Plant. This new 
design prevents fish and debris from 
entering the cooling water intake 
system, thus minimizing environ
mental impacts and improving the 
plant's operating efficiency.  

FUEL SUPPLY 

A decade ago, we were almost 
totally dependent on oil and had few 
options in selecting fuel for electric 
generation. Today, coal and natural 
gas have been added to our gener
ating fuel mix, and firm contracts 
with multiple suppliers of each fuel 
have been supplemented by pur
chases on the spot markets to take 
advantage of price fluctuations. As a 
result, we are able to utilize several 
options to provide fuel at the lowest 
available cost and in a manner which 
assures an adequate supply which 
meets environmental standards.



Recent world problems in the 
Middle East once again demonstrated 
the value of fuel storage. As a result, 
we have increased our storage 
capacity by leasing an additional 
310,000-barrel tank from a terminal 
adjacent to the Roseton Plant.  

We will be seeking new long
term coal contracts in 1991. Further 
cost moderations result from our 
purchase of about 15 percent of our 
needs on the spot market. We expect 
that this will result in coal and 
nuclear continuing to be our 
lowest cost fuels.  

We have supplemented our firm 
contracts for natural gas with spot 
purchases, contracts for storage gas 
and vaporized liquefied natural gas 
and with our own propane-air plants.  
These will enable us to meet pro
jected peak day demands through the 
winter of 199 1-92, after which major 
supply additions are expected to be 
available through the Iroquois Gas 
Transmission System. Gas received 
from this line under contracts already 
in place will meet projected customer 
needs for the rest of this decade.  

NINE MILE 2 SETTLEMENT 

in October, the Public Service 
Commission orally approved a Settle
ment Agreement which ended nearly 
a decade of administrative investiga
tion and litigation surrounding the 
construction of the Nine Mile 2 
nuclear pla-nt on Lake Ontario, in 
which the Company has a nine 
percent interest.  

The many parties involved had 
unanimously agreed to the settle
ment, which included the elimination 
of two court proceedings challenging 
Commission opinions; resolution of 
numerous issues left open from 
several prior rate or other proceed
ings; and satisfaction of the New York 
Attorney General's petition seeking

a prudence investigation into an 
extended outage. Finally, it estab
lishes the rate-making for the allow
able cost of the construction of the 
Plant and for its operations through 
June 1991, and creates a single 
mechanism to establish those 
operating costs into 1993.  

In September, the Commission 
approved an interim agreement by 
the cotenants for operating the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant. Niagara Mohawk con
tinues as the plant operator, while the 
nonoperating cotenants share certain 
policy, budget and managerial over
sight responsibilities through a co
tenant Management Committee. In 
November, the cotenants extended 
this agreement until February 22, 
1992.  

Also in September, the first re
fueling outage for the plant began.  
The unit returned to service in 
early 1991.  

CAPITAL EXPANSION 
AND IMPROVEMENT 

Our budget for 1991 was 
developed to support our corporate 
strategies. Stated briefly, these are to 
improve service reliability; to im
prove the reliability and efficiency of 
generating units; to assure environ
mental compliance; to improve 
operating effectiveness; to achieve 
further fuel diversification; to con
tinue our new business program; 
and to respond to customer demands 
for new and expanded service. It 
anticipates expenditures totalling 
$84 million, an increase of about 
$33 million over actual 1990 
expenditures.  

Major items included in the 
budget are the expansion and renova
tion of our Poughkeepsie Customer 
Service Office and construction of 
a new Computer and System Op
erations building at the General 
Offices, as well as construction of



an expansion to the Fishkill 
Operating Headquarters to con
solidate at one location all Customer 
Services functions in the 
Beacon District.  

Other projects include a Phase 11 
addition to our facility for handling %/ 
solid wastes produced by the burning 
of coal at the Danskammer Generat- t 1%1'%1e 

ing Plant, construction of two natural J V'# A, 
gas pipeline segments linking the 
Roseton Generating Plant and the 
Iroquois Gas Transmission System A AA 
and modifications at Roseton to en
able its two boilers to fire natural gas.  
The budget also provides for new 
substation capacity, including a major 
345-KV to 115-KV substation in East 
Fishkill, to provide for customer I 0i 411N, 
needs and improve reliability. Funds % g 
are also included to reinforce portions "V 

of the electric transmission system.  

FOCUS ON ENERGY EFFICIENCY'.  

Energy - efficient lamps provi --.  
major reductions in energy 
use for customers such as the
All Sport Clubs. MiTVolta,,-
Manager of hie n and- Side 
Management (riht) and, 
Andy Lenec, Supervis..  
of DSM Program ON 
Implementation, 
display two types of 
lamps used in the Of A 
Poughkeepsie fitnes
center, one of a 
growing number of 
customers who ar 
benefitting from ourL 
energy-efficiency 

programs.  
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RATE PROCEEDINGS 

In May, the Public Service Com
mission approved an increase in base 
electric revenues of $13,793,000, or 
about 3.6 percent. The authorized re
turn on common equity is 12.1 per
cent and the overall rate of return for 
the rate year is 10.15 percent. While 
the return on common equity was 
somewhat less than requested, the 
overall rate decision is seen as fair 
and reasonable. Moreover, in its 
findings, the Commission stated its 
interest in improving the Company's 
credit ratings.  

In August, the first request in five 
years for an increase in firm gas 
revenues was filed with the Commis
sion. This filing seeks an increase in 
rates of 9 percent, which would 
produce $6,769,000 to cover costs 
associated with the construction of 
new gas facilities, increases in 
operating expenses and higher taxes.  

1990 FUEL MIX 
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Base gas rates were last increased 
in September 1985. Two years later, 
following a rate decrease, we agreed 
to freeze rates through 1990. Thus 
even with the proposed increase, gas 
prices to our customers will have 
increased at less than the rate of 
inflation through that period.  

ELECTRIC AND GAS SALES 

While the economic slowdown 
had its effect on the Mid-Hudson 
Region in 1990, with sinigle-family 
housing starts declining about 35 
percent and the square footage of new 
commercial construction off about 20 
percent from 1989, the region 
continues to outpace others in the 
State. During the year, we added 
2,665 residential customers and 802 
commercial customers to the system, 
and total electric sales from all 
customer classes were up 3.3 percent.  

Our primary electric marketing 
effort in 1990 focused on promoting 
add-on heat pumps, where a heat 
pump is used in connection with an 
existing heating system. In addition, 
as part of our residential energy 
efficiency programs, we are providing 
incentive payments which resulted in 
265 high-efficiency heat pump and 
air conditioning installations.  

Firm sales of natural gas 
increased 3.7 percent over 1989 when 
normalized for weather and the 
average number of customers served 
in all classes increased by 1,398.



Our major gas sales effort in 1990 
was focused on adding new commer
cial customers along existing mains 
and in our newer franchise areas.  
Resulting conversions from 
competing fuels will add about 
178,000 Mcf a year to our firm load, 
more than doubling the 1989 results.  
Residential conversions totalled 617, 
a 13 percent increase over those 
achieved in 1989.  

An 8.5-mile gas main extension 
was completed in late 1990 ini 
Putnam County, expanding service 
within the Town of Carmel. in 
Orange County, we completed an 8
mile gas line which will reinforce our 
existing system and enable us to 
serve additional customers in the 
towns of Hamptonburgh and 
Montgomery.  

Earlier in the year, we completed 
a 1.3- mile main extension which 
brought gas service to portions of the 
community of Hyde Park, including 
much of its extensive business 
section.

1985
1986

*For comparative purposes, the 
reduction in 1987 earnings due 
to the write-off of the NMP-2 
disallowance order SFAS 90 
has been excluded.

7Z 1989

CENTRAL HUDSON NET INCOME

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Our role in the developing 
economy of the Mid-Hudson Region 
remains one of both supporting 
regional growth and ensuring that it 
is achieved in a manner which is en
vironmentally sound and does not 
conflict with the quality of life. We 
work closely with local and state 
economic development organizations 
as well as with Mid-Hudson Pattern 
for Progress, Inc., a regional research 
organization which seeks to balance 
economic development with quality 
of life and environmental objectives.  

The keystone for economic 
development in our region continues 
to be the area around Stewart 
International Airport in eastern 
Orange County. Its attractiveness as 
the hub of a major land and air 
transportation network was enhanced 
in 1990 by the highly successful 
commencement of scheduled air 
passenger service. The initial flights 
by American Airlines in April, 
serving Chicago and Raleigh
Durham, were soon augmented by 
U. S. Air service to Pittsburgh and by 
regional carriers serving Washington, 
Philadelphia, Boston and Kennedy 
International Airport.

IRT



CUSTOMER SERVICE 

Expanded levels of service were 
instituted at our Customer Service 
Offices in 1990 to provide greater 
access to customers, either in person 
or by telephone contact.  

in addition to keeping our 
lobbies open for an extra hour each 
day, Customer Service Representa
tives can now be contacted by 
telephone until 8 p.m. weekday 
evenings and during the day on 
Saturdays. Field representatives are 
now available during the daytime 
seven days a week and on weekday 
evenings.  

We expect that this "At Your 
Service" program will add greatly to 
our ability to respond to customer 
needs, particularly to dual-income or 
single-parent families who are unable 
to conduct business during the day.  

In response to a program man
dated by the Public Service Com
mission, we expanded our time-of-
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ELECTRIC PEAKS 
OWN TERRITORY

use service to include some 5,000 
customers whose summer electric 
usage is the highest among all 
residential customers. The intent is to 
encourage them to shift a major part 
of their use to off-peak periods, 
when costs will be lower.  

By concentrating on providing 
quality service, we have been able to 
measurably reduce the number of 
customer complaints to the Public 
Service Commission. While com
plaints had been averaging about 300 
a year, they have declined to well 
below 200 a year.  

We are continuing our efforts to 
reduce the duration and frequency of 
electric service interruptions. Impor
tant to these efforts is an intensified 
tree-trimming program which was in
stituted in the spring of 1990 to re
duce the effect of storms on electric 
circuits and improve reliability of ser
vice. Under this program, we will be 
trimming one third, or some 2,000 
miles, of our distribution circuits 
annually.  

SPECIAL CUSTOMER NEEDS 

Our Community Relations and 
Consumer Outreach Section is 
responsible for identifying and 
developing programs or services for 
customers with special needs, includ
ing senior citizens, consumers under 
financial pressure and the disabled.  
Examples of the services we provide 
are life support protection, equipment 
for communicating with the speech
or hearing- impaired, specially coded 
accounts, deferred payment agree
ments, and low-cost or no-cost loans 
for energy improvements.

1989



By working closely with repre
sentatives of these groups, as well as 
with private and public social 
agencies, we continually evaluate the 
effectiveness of our existing programs 
and determine what new needs may 
exist in the community. Evaluation is 
also provided by our Consumer 
Advisory Panel, which for more than 
a decade has provided valued input 
on our operations from the customers' 
viewpoint.  

For example, in late 1990, we 
established a "Good Neighbor Fund" 
through which our residential 
customers were invited to contribute 
up to $10 with each bill payment to 
assist other customers. This program 
is not another entitlement grant, but 
rather is a form of crisis intervention 
which provides emergency assistance 
with gas and/or electric payments 
until a more permanent form of sup
port can be found. The Company will 
match customer contributions up to a 
total of $50,000 a year. This fund is 
administered by The Salvation Army.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS 
The goal of our subsidiary 

operations is to make investments in 
nonregulated businesses which are 
related to our core business. By 
concentrating on those areas where 
we have known expertise, we see 
opportunities to produce earnings 
in excess of those permitted in our 
primary, regulated business.  

The Company presently has two 
very active subsidiaries engaged in 
energy efficiency and cogeneration 
projects, Central Hudson Enterprises 
Corporation (CHEC) and Central 
Hudson Cogeneration, Inc. (Cenco
gen). In 1990, we established a Sub
sidiary Operations Division to con
centrate greater emphasis on their 
operations, as well as to review other 
opportunities to enhance shareholder 
value. Both subsidiaries are now 
showing profits, which are expected 
to increase as projects currently being 
pursued are completed during 1991.
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CHEC is well positioned in the 
energy -efficiency field. As a full
service energy company, it offers 
clients engineering evaluation, 
design, construction, financing and 
operational services. With an in
creased staff to pursue larger markets, 
CHEC has been awarded contracts 
from Boston Edison Company in 
Massachusetts and Public Service 
Electric & Gas Company in New 
Jersey. The contracts will involve 
implementing demand side manage
ment projects, principally lighting, 
heating, ventilating and air con
ditioning efficiency improvements, 
for several of those utilities' large 
commercial customers.  

Cencogen is an investor in small 
power projects. It has a 50-percent 
interest in the West Delaware Hydro 
Plant in Sullivan County. New York, 
which began operating in 1988, and 
a 7-percent interest in the Hydro
Kennebec Plant in Maine, which 
went into service in early 1989.  
Cencogen is continuing to review 
investments in potential projects to 
be developed, as well as independent 
power projects which are already 
in operation.

198 5 
1986

1987

RESEARCH AND 
DEV ELOPMENT 

Our research, development and 
demonstration goals are primarily 
oriented toward providing greater 
benefits to our customers through a 
strategy of containing the cost of elec
tric and gas service; evaluating the 
potential of supplementary energy 
technologies; promoting efficient end
use for electricity and gas while re
searching new consumer applica
tions; and controlling environmental 
impacts.  

These goals are pursued through 
OUr support of a wide range of ac
tivities carried out on the state and 
national levels, as well as by a 
number of Company-managed 
projects. Among the latter: 

New gas applications. A natural 
gas-powered chiller will be installed 
at our new Fishkill consolidated 
headquarters to test the viability of 
natural gas air conditioning for com
mercial applications. This system has 
the potential of improving gas sales 
and system utilization during the 
summer, as well as helping to reduce 
peak electric demand.  

Natural gas vehicles. We began 
a market assessment in late 1990 to

1988
1989
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evaluate the potential of compressed 
natural gas (CNG) vehicles among 
local fleet operators. With the advent 
of the Clean Air Act Amendments, 
coupled with plans by General 
Motors to market a CNG vehicle, we 
expect to see growing interest in this 
field. We also plan to add more CNG 
vehicles to our own fleet.  

Meter reading. To improve our 
meter reading and billing function in 
the future, we are testing two remote 
meter reading systems. One uses a 
transmitter/receiver in a vehicle to 
record microwave-based readings, 
and a second reads meters via the 
telephone lines. These have the 
potential of greatly reducing both the 
time spent in this function as well 
as the number of unread meters.  

inventory control. A voice
activated data collection system now 
being tested will greatly improve the 
control of inventory in our system 
storerooms. Using a combination of 
bar code technology and speech 
recognition, storekeepers will be able 
to instantly update our computer 
records of the tens of thousands 
of items in stock.

9,000 
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S3,000 

0 
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STOCK IN VESTMENT 
PROGRAMS 

Our Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 
instituted in 1982, continues to help 
reduce borrowing requirements and 
strengthen the Company's capital 
structure. Shareholders may invest 
from $25 to $5,000 per quarter 
through this program. During 1990, 
8,980 shareholders reinvested their 
dividends and/or made voluntary 
cash payments totalling $3,963,92 1.  

Our Customer Stock Purchase 
Plan was successfully reintroduced in 
late 1989, offering customers an 
opportunity to invest from $100 to 
$2,000 in the Company's common 
stock during any one quarter without 
payment of brokerage commissions.  
This resulted in the sale of 30,285 
shares of common stock and receipts 
to the Company of approximately 
$686,090.  

The Public Service Commission 
has approved the extension of both 
plans through 1992.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 
Two new directors joined the 

Board in 1990, and a long-time asso
ciate and Board member passed away.  

Edward P. Swyer, Managing 
Partner of WTZA-TV Associates and 
President of L. A. Swyer Realty and 
Management, Inc., took his seat on 
the Board on January 1. L. Wallace 
Cross, who will retire in 1991 as our 
Executive Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer, joined the Board 
on December 1.  

In May, the Board noted with 
regret the death of John M. Kings
land. Mr. Kingsland had served as 
a Director for three years and had a 
long association with the Company.  
Prior to joining the Board, he had 
served as an expert financial witness 
in several of our rate proceedings, and 
as an officer of Kidder, Peabody & 
Co., Inc., he was involved in all of the 
Company's major financings during 
our heaviest construction period.  

On January 1, Ronald P. Brand, 
Manager - Electric Engineering 
Services, was named Assistant Vice 
President - Engineering. At its April 
meeting, the Board named two new 
Vice Presidents. Joseph J. DeVirgilio, 
Jr. was promoted to Vice President 
Human Resources and Administra
tion, and John F. Drain was promoted 
to Vice President - Controller and 
Treasurer. Mr. DeVirgilio had been 
Assistant Vice President - Human 
Resources, while Mr. Drain had 
served as Treasurer, and previously 
as Controller.

CAPITALIZATION 1990 

RATIOS 

=Cmn =Pfd =LT Debt =ST Debt
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Your Board of Directors 

Front Row, from left - Marjorie S. Brown; John E. Mack III, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Paul J. Ganci, 
President and Chief Operating Officer; Howard C. St. John, Vice Chairman; Edward F. X. Gallagher.  

Back Row, from left - Richard H. Eyman, Charles LaForge, Jack Effron, Edward P. Swyer, Heinz K. Fridrich, 
L. Wallace Cross, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
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Earnings Per Share: (Page 45) 
Earnings per share of common stock were $2.38 in 

1990, an increase of 10 cents, or 4% from 1989. The 
increase in earnings was principally due to an increase 
in base electric rates which became effective on May 24, 
1990 and the very favorable relationship between sales 
and related production costs which the Company 
experienced in 1990.  

Dividends Per Share: (Page 52) 
As a result of a projected improvement in earnings 

and the resolution of the uncertainties that arose in the 
Company's last electric rate case, the quarterly dividend 
rate was increased to $.46 per share, effective August 1, 
1990. This represented an increase of 4.5% over the 
previous quarterly rate of $.44 per share. Dividends 
paid to shareholders in 1990 were $1.80 per share as 
compared to $1.76 per share in 1989. No portion of 
the 1990 dividend constitutes a return of capital.  

Nine Mile 2 Plant: (Note 2) 
On October 24, 1990, the Public Service Commission 

(PSC) approved a settlement agreement, dated June 6, 
1990, which brings to a close all outstanding issues 
related to the cost of construction of the Nine Mile 2 
Plant, its operation through January 19, 1990 and the 
1986 Settlement. Such approval did not require any 
adjustment to the amount of the disallowed investment 
written off by the Company in 1987.  

Economy: 
The Company continued to recognize the effects 

of a slowing national and regional economy in 1990.  
Although the sales of electricity within Central 
Hudson's service territory increased for the eighth 
consecutive year and firm sales of natural gas, 
normalized for weather, grew for the fifth consecutive 
year the rate of growth has slowed for both services.  
The industrial market for both gas and electricity held 
up the best while the residential market, which 
provides the highest operating margins, showed the 
greatest softening. The Company continues to serve 
a growing economic area.  

Electric Sales: (Page 47) 
Electric sales within the service territory increased 

3.3% in 1990. Sales to residential customers remained 
stable from last year due to the net effect of a 1% 
growth in the number of customers and a 1% decrease 
in usage per customer. Sales to commercial customers 
increased 2% due to increased customer growth.  
Industrial sales increased 7% primarily due to 
increased usage by existing customers.  

Gas Sales: (Page 48) 
Firm sales of natural gas remained unchanged from 

1989. Sales to residential customers decreased 3% and 
sales to commercial customers remained stable. Firm 
sales to industrial customers increased 12% primarily 
from increased sales to existing customers.

Rate Proceedings: (Page 45) 
On May 26, 1989, the Company filed a request with 

the PSC to increase its rates for electric service to pro
duce additional annual revenue of $21.6 million, or 
5.7% for the period June 1, 1990 through May 31, 1991.  
On May 21, 1990, the PSC issued its Opinion and 
Order (Order) authorizing the Company to increase its 
base electric revenues by $13.8 million, an increase of 
approximately 3.6%. The new rates became effective on 
May 24, 1990 and are applicable to all usage thereafter.  
The Order authorized a return on common equity of 
12.1%, an overall rate of return for the rate year of 
10.15%, and provided a cash coverage level of 2.53 times.  

On August 10, 1990, the Company filed a request 
with the PSC to increase its base rates for firm gas 
service by $6.8 million or 9% for the twelve month 
period beginning July 1, 1991. This request is being 
reviewed by the PSC and a final decision is not 
expected before June 199 1.  

Common Stock: (Note 5) 
The Dividend Reinvestment Plan and Customer 

Stock Purchase Plan raised $4.7 million. These 
issuances increased the number of common shares out
standing to 14,950,956. At December 31, 1990, a share 
of common stock was selling at $24.75 while the book 
value per share was $22.31. At December 31, 1990, the 
Company's shares were held approximately 45% by 
individuals registered with the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, 9% by institutional investors, and 46% in 
"street name." 

1990 Financing Program: (Notes 4 and 6) 
The Company redeemed its 13% Series First 

Mortgage Bonds in the amount of $35 million on 
December 4, 1990. The funds required to finance this 
redemption were obtained from a combination of short
term debt, the liquidation of temporary cash 
investments and the sale of accounts receivables. The 
amount of short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 
1990 was $28 million.  

The Company entered into a new revolving credit 
agreement, effective December 17, 1990, with four 
commercial banks for borrowing up to $50 million 
through December 14, 1997.  

1991 Financing Program: (Page 44) 
During 1991, the Comipany plans on issuing up to 

600,000 shares of additional common stock and up to 
$70 million of new long-term debt. The proceeds from 
these offerings will be used to refinance the 14 5/8% 
Series First Mortgage Bonds ($45 million) which the 
Company has the option to redeem on June 12, 1991 
and to retire the short-term debt incurred in December 
1990 to redeem the 13% Series. This program will help 
strengthen the Company's capital structure.  

Taxes: (Page 50) 
In 1990, the Company incurred $79.7 million for 

operating taxes levied by federal, state and local 
governments.



Five-Year Summary of Consolidated operations and Selected Financial Data* 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

1990 1989 1988 1987 1986 
Operating Revenues 

Electric ...................................................... $ 433,859 $ 403,235 $ 379,249 $ 374,951 $ 377,103 
Gas............................................................. 69,749 66,767 59,136 54,126 61,448 

Total....................................................... 503,608 470,002 438,385 429,077 438,551 

Operating Expenses 
Operations ................................................... 279,602 263,104 232,243 223,916 240,196 
Maintenance........I.......................................... 30,364 23,939 23,813 20,632 19,733 
Depreciation and amortization ........................... 36,134 35,344 31,938 28,163 24,894 

Operating taxes............................................. 57,234 51,240 47,953 44,379 42,551 
Federal income tax......................................... 22,456 19,828 21,843 31,476 39,454 

Total....................................................... 425,790 393,455 357,790 348,566 366,828 

Operating Income ........................................... 77,818 76,547 80,595 80,511 71,723 

Other Income and Deductions 
Equity component of AFDC............................... 785 463 403 3,371 21,594 

Federal income tax- net................................... 2,082 910 703 (71) 6,690 
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90 ......- - - (51,919) 

Other - net.................................................... 1,505 3,419 2,739 2,198 371 
Total........................................................ 4,372 4,792 3,845 (46,421) 28,655 

Income before Interest Charges and Cumulative 
Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle ... 82,190 81,339 84,440 34,090 100,378 

Interest Charges .............................................. 41,155 42,222 40,636 42,559 35,494 

Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect 
Sof a Change in Accounting Principle ......... 41,035 39,117 43,804 (8,469) 64,884 

Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of Adoption of 
5FAS 90 ....................................................... - - - (101,475) 

Net Income (Loss) ........................................... 41,035 39,117 43,804 (109,944) 64,884 

Dividends on Preferred Stock............................. 5,681 5,698 5,753 5,593 5,614 

income (Loss) Available for 
Common Stock ........................................... 35,354 33,419 38,051 (115,537) 59,270 

Dividends Declared on Common Stock ......... 27,067 25,825 24,851 37,666 40,393 

Amount Retained in the Business ....................... 8,287 7,594 13,200 (153,203) 18,877 

Retained Earnings - beginning of year .......... 32,324 24,730 11,530 164,733 145,856 

Retained Earnings -end of year ....................... $ 40,611 $ 32,324 $ 24,730 $ 11,530 $ 164,733 

Common Stock 
Average Shares Outstanding (000's) ..................... 14,850 14,657 14,473 14,230 13,207 
income (Loss) Available Per Average Share ...... $2.38 $2.28 $2.63 $(8.12) $4.49 

Dividends Declared Per Share............................ $1.82 $1.76 $1.715 $2.645 $2.96 
Book Value Per Share (at year end) ..................... $22.31 $21.76 $21.24 $20.35 $31.18 

Total Assets................................................... $1,093,530 $1,073,695 $1,046,290 $1,024,371 $1,157,698 
Long-Term Debt.............................................. 407,638 447,440 448,605 429,958 439,725 

Cumulative Preferred Stock ............. I................. 81,030 81,030 81,030 81,030 81,030 

Common Equity ............................................. 333,587 320,709 309,269 292,240 439,860 

PRO FORMA EFFECT OF SIAS 90 BEING APPLIED 
RETROACTIVELY FOR NMP-2 DISALLOWANCE 

income (Loss) Available for Common Stock ..... $ - $ - $ - $ (14,062) $ 13,270 

Income (Loss) Available Per Average Share 
of Common Stock .................................... $ - $ - $ - $ (.99) $ 1.01 

*This summary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the 

"Financial Section" of this Annual Report.



FINANCIAL SECTION 1990 ANNUAL REPORT 

Report of Independent Accountants 

f Price Waterhouse
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet and the related consolidated statements of 
income, of retained earnings and of cash flows present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation and its 
subsidiaries at December 31, 1990 and 1989, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 3 1, 
1990, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. These financial statements are the respon
sibility of the Company's management; our respon
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits of these financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted auditing standards which require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the 

opinion expressed above.  

PcA4Twa 4& 
New York, New York 
February 4, 1991

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS 
(Thousands of Dollars)

1990

Balance at beginning of year ....................................  
Net Income ..........................................................  

Dividends declared: 
On cumulative preferred stock..................................  
On common stock 

($1.82 per share 1990; $1.76 per share 1989; 
$1.715 per share 1988) ........................................  

Balance at end of year ............................................

$32,324 
41,035 
73,359 

5,681 

27,067 
32,748 

$40,611*

Year ended December 3 1, 
1989

$24,730 
39,117 
63,847 

5,698 

25,825 
31,523 

$32,324

1988

$11,530 
43,804 
55,334 

5,753 

24,851 
30,604 

$24,730

*Pursuant to the terms of the 4.85% promissory notes, due 1995, $32,198 is available 
for payment of dividends on common stock.  

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.



Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(Thousands of Dollars)

Assets

Utility Plant 
Electric .............................................................  
Gas..................................................................  
Common............................................................  
Nuclear Fuel ........................................................  

Less: Accumulated depreciation ............................  
Nuclear fuel amortization.............................  

Construction work in progress ................................  

Other Property and Investments ..............................  

Current Assets 
Cash...............I....................................................  
Temporary cash investments...................................  
Special deposits...................................................  
Accounts receivable from customers - net (Note 8) .........  
Accrued unbilled utility revenues (Notes 1 and 8) .........  
other receivable s...................................................  
Materials and supplies, at average cost: 

Fuel ...............................................................  
Construction and operating.................................  

Prepaid taxes and other prepayments..........................  

Deferred Charges 
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Note 1)..  
Deferred Roseton litigation settlement (Note 1) ............  
Unamortized debt expense.......................................  
Deferred vacation (Note 9) .....................................  
Deferred NMP-2 litigation costs ...............................  
Other ................................................................

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

1990 1989

$ 996,477 
95,711 
60,453 
21,260 

1,173,901 
344,672 

12,350 
816,879 

38,224 
855,103 

5,253

6,442 
2,032 

150 
41,804 
8,72 1 
6,936 

27,616 
12,966 
9,764 

116,431 

74,870 
2,764 
8,114 
3,052 
3,417 

24,526 
116,743

$ .983,479 
88,501 
55,196 
19,231 

1,146,407 
317,356 

8,240 
820,811 

26,994 
847,805 

5,303

4,642 
10,475 

179 
36,506 
8,961 
5,889

16,349 
12,824 
10,209 

106,034 

75,221 
3,685 
9,287 
2,964 
2,696 

20,700 
114 ,553

$1,073,695$1,093,530



December 31, 1990 and 1989

Liabilities

Capitalization 
Common Stock Equity 

Common stock (Note 5) ..........................  
Paid-in capital (Note 5) ...................................... .....  

Retained earnings .............................................................  
Capital stock expense ..... .......................  

Cumulative Preferred Stock (Note 5) 
Without sinking fund ...........................  
W ith sinking fund .............................................................  

Long-term Debt (Note 6)...............................  

Current Liabilities 
Current maturities of long-term debt ............................  
Notes payable ......... ............ ........................... ........  
Accounts payable ................................  
A ccrued taxes .........................................................................  
Accrued interest ............................................. . .........  
Accrued vacation (Note9) ....................................................  
Customer deposits ............... ...................................  
Dividends declared ...... ....................................................  
Accrued Nine Mile 2 Project completion costs (Note 2) .......  
Accrued pension costs (Note 7) ......................  
O ther ..........................................  

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Note 1) ......  
Operating reserves ............................................................  
O ther ............................. . ................................ ....... .  

Accumulated Deferred IncomeTax (Note 3) .......................  

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 9) ......

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

1990

$ 74,755 
223,957 

40,611 
(5,736) 

333,587 

61,030 
20,000 

81,030 

407,638 
822,255 

5,724 
28,000 

34,602 
6,347 
7,607 
3,245 
3,378 
8,319 

3,089 
7,064 

107,375 

60,095 
1,390 

11,290 
72,775 

91,125

1989

$ 73,707 
220,355 

32,324 
(5,677) 

320,709 

61,030 
20,000 
81,030 

447,440 

849,179 

1,559 

25,617 

4,830 
7,927 

3,157 
3,416 
7,886 

5,554 

5,424 
65,370 

63,114 

1,468 
12,889 
77,471

81,675

$1,073,695$1,093,530



Consolidated Statement of Income 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 
1990 1989 1988 

Operating Revenues 

Electric .................................................... $410,100 $379,376 $366,052 

Gas ................... .. . .. .......... 69,749 66,767 59,136 

Total - ow n territory ...... ................................................................... 479,849 446,143 425,188 

Revenues from electric sales to other utilities ........................ 23,759 23,859 13,197 
503,608 470,002 438,385 

Operating Expenses 
Operation: 

Fuel used in electric generation ....................................................... 132,598 130,078 114,020 

Purchased electricity ......................................................................... 23,401 15,757 12,099 

Purchased natural gas ...................................................................... 38,888 39,275 31,981 

Other expenses of operation.............................................. 84,715 77,994 74,143 

M aintenance ........................................................................................ 30,364 23,939 23,813 

Depreciation and amortization (Note 1) ............................................... 36,134 35,344 31,938 

Taxes, other than income tax ................................................................ . 57,234 51,240 47,953 

Federal income tax (Note 3) ................... I ........ ............................. 15,110 10,253 (2,817) 

Deferred income tax (Note 3) ................................................................ 7,346 9,575 24,660 
425,790 393,455 357,790 

Operating Incom e ................................................................................... 77,818 76,547 80,595 

Other Income and Deductions 
Allowance for equity funds-used during construction (Note 1) ......... 785 463 403 

Federal income tax (Note 3) ....................................... 4,198 3,646 5,747 

Deferred income tax (Note 3) ..... ...................................................... (2,116) (2,736) (5,044) 

Other - net ........................... 1,505 3,419 2,739 
4,372 4,792 3,845 

Income before Interest Charges ............................................................ 82,190 81,339 84,440 

Interest Charges 

Interest on'm ortgage bonds .................................................................. 29,726 30,055 29,001 

Interest on other long-term debt ........................................................... 9,276 10,187 8,888 

O ther interest.......................................................................................... 1,951 1,350 2,296 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (Note 1) .... (895) (429) (591) 
Amortization of premium and expense on debt .................................. 1,097 1,059 1,042 

41,155 42,222 40,636 

NetInco me .......... ............................................... 41,035 39,117 43,804 

Dividends on Preferred Stock ............................................................... 5,681 5,698 5,753 

Income Available for Common Stock .......................... $ 35,354 $ 33,419 $ 38,051 

Common Stock 
Average Shares Outstanding (000's) ..................................... 14,850 14,657 14,473 

Earnings Per Share - On Average Shares Outstanding ....................... $2.38 $2.28 $2.63 

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

Operating Activities 
Net Income....................................................................  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ........................................  
Deferred income taxes, net.............................................  
Plant Disallowance applied to Accrued NMP-2 Completion Costs.  
Allowance for funds used during construction ...................  
NMP-2 deferred finance charges, net ...............................  
Deferred electric revenues.............................................  
Provisions for uncollectibles ..........................................  
Other - net ...............................................................  
Changes in current assets & liabilities, net: 

Receivable - NMP-2 Settlement ..................................  
Accrued NMP-2 Project completion costs.......................  
Accounts receivable and unbilled utility revenues............  
Materials and supplies ..............................................  
Special deposits, prepaid taxes and other prepayments ....  
Accounts payable ....................................................  
Accrued taxes and interest .........................................  
Accrued pension costs ..............................................  
Other current liabilities.............................................  

Net cash provided by operating activities...............................  

Investing Activities 
Additions to plant ............................................................  
Allowance for funds used during construction.........................  
Net cash expenditures .......................................................  
Investment activity of subsidiaries ........................................  
Plant retirements, costs of removal and other ..........................  
NMP-2 decommissioning trust fund ......................................  

Net cash used in investing activities......................................  

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from issuance of: 

Long-term debt ............................................................  
Common stock.............................................................  
Pollution control debt: 

issued ...................................................................  
Deposited with Trustee................................................  
Withdrawn from Trustee ..............................................  

Short-term debt, net......................................................  
Cash provided by external sources......................................  

Retirement and redemption of long-term debt.........................  
Dividends paid on preferred and common stock ......................  

Net cash used in financing activities......................................  

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents.............................  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year.....................  
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year.............................  

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 
Interest paid ..................................................................  
Federal income taxes paid ..................................................

1990
Year ended December 3 1,

1989 1988

$ 41,035 $ 39,117 $ 43,804

41,105 
9,462 
4,672 

(1,680) 
(2,668) 

3,358 
(3,297) 

(5,554) 
(9,463) 

(11,409) 
474 

8,985 
1,197 
3,089 
1,689 

80,995 

(50,822) 
1,680 

(49,142) 
(18) 

(2,254) 
(880) 

(52,294) 

1,017 
4,650 

28,000 
33,667 

(36,697) 
(32,314) 

(35,344) 

(6,643) 

15,117 
$ 8,474

40,306 
12,310 

(892) 
(2,420) 

(551) 
2,533 

(41) 

201 
(27,280) 

(2,618) 
(418) 

1,891 
1,223 

(576) 

62,785 

(42,086) 
892 

(4 1, 194) 
(2,016) 

(369) 

(43,579) 

499 
3,961 

4,460 
(1,636) 

(31,487) 

(28,663) 

(9,457) 

24,574 
$ 15,117

35,422 
29,704 

(994) 
(500) 

(1,659) 
(234) 

2,294 

26,100 
(5,510) 
(7,351) 
(4,192) 

(786) 
1,290 

(7,810) 

(6,600) 

102,978 

(53,472) 
994 

(52,478) 
(5,881) 
4,083 

(54,276) 

5,850 
3,955 

16,700 
(16,700) 
19,806 
(4,000) 
25,611 

(21,620) 
(30,325) 

__26,334) 

22,368 

2,206 
$24,574

$ 41,077 $ 42,263 $ 39,099 
13,566 10,158 7,000

The Notes'to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT, 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General: The Company is subject to regulation by 
the Public Service Commission of the State,,of New 
York (PSC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) with respect to its rates for service 
and the maintenance of its accounting records. The 
Company's accounting policies conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applied to regulated 
public utilities and are in accordance with the 
accounting requirements and rate-making practices of 
the regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.  

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the 
Company considers short-.term investments with a 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated 
financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated.  

The Company's subsidiaries are wholly owned 
landholding, gas exploration, cogeneration and energy 
management companies. The assets, liabilities and 
results of operations of these subsidiaries are not 
significant in relation to the Company. Furthermore, 
due to immateriality, the net income of the Company's 
subsidiaries is reflected in the Statement of Income as 
other nonoperating income - net.  

The total and net assets of the Company's sub
sidiaries at December 31, 1990 and 1989 and the 
revenues and net income derived from subsidiary 
operations for the last three years are as follows: 

1990 1989 1988 
(Thousands of Dollars)

Total Assets (year-end) 
Net Assets (year-end) 
Revenues 
Net Income

$10,731 
4,945 
3,879 

479

$10,838 
3,965 
3,336 

357

N/A 
N/A 
$734 

821

Utility Plant: The costs of additions to utility plant 
and replacements of retirement units of property are 
capitalized at original cost. The costs of Unit No. 2 of 
the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station (Nine Mile 2 Plant) 
are capitalized at original cost, less the amount of the 
disallowed investment (See Note 2). Costs include 
labor, materials and supplies, indirect charges for such 
items as transportation, certain taxes, pension and other 
employee benefits and an allowance for the cost of 
funds used during construction. Replacement of minor 
items of property is included in maintenance expenses.  

The original cost of property, together with removal 
cost, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreci
ation at such time as the property is retired and

removed from service.  
The Company has a 9% or 97.2 MW interest in the 

1,080 MW Nine Mile 2 Plant and a 35% or 420 MW 
interest in the 1,200 MW Roseton Steam Electric 
Generating Plant (Roseton Plant). See Note 9 for further 
discussion.  

The Company's shares of the investment in the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant and the Roseton Plant, as included in its 
Balance Sheet at December 31, 1990 and 1989, were:

1990 1989 
(Thousands of Dollars)

NMP-2 Plant 
Plant in service 
Construction work in progress 
Accumulated depreciation 

Roseton Plant 
Plant in service 
Construction work in progress 
Accumulated depreciation

$299,180 
7,225 

(20,529) 

$118,061 
1,226 

(57,432)

$303,429 
3,110 

(13,046) 

$117,574 
178 

(54,132)

Allowance for Funds used During Construction: 
The Company includes in plant costs an allowance 

for funds used during construction (AFDC) 
approximately equivalent to the cost of funds used to 
finance construction expenditures. The concurrent 
credit for the amount so capitalized is reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of income as follows: the 
portion applicable to borrowed funds is reported 
as a reduction of interest charges while the portion 
applicable to other funds (the equity component) is 
reported as other income. AFDC is a noncash source 
of income.  

During the construction of the Nine Mile 2 Plant, the 
PSC authorized the inclusion in rate base of increasing 
amounts of the Company's investment in that Plant.  
The Company did not accrue AFDC on any of the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant construction work in progress (CWIP) 
which was included in rate base and for which a cash 
return was being allowed; however, the PSC ordered, 
effective January 1, 1983, that amounts be accumulated 
in deferred debit and credit accounts equal to the 
amount of AFDC which was not being accrued on the 
CWIP included in rate base (Mirror CWIP). The balance 
in the deferred credit account is available to reduce 
future revenue requiremnents over a period substantially 
shorter than the life of the Nine Mile 2 Plant, while the 
balance in the deferred debit account is being recovered 
through amortization over the life of that Plant. The net 
effect of this procedure is that at the end of the 
amortization period for the deferred credit, the account
ing and rate-making treatment will be the same as if 
the Nine Mile 2 Plant CWIP had not been included in 
rate base during the construction period.



Depreciation and Amortization: 
* For financial statement purposes, the Company's 

depreciation provisions are computed on the straight
line method using rates based on studies of the estimated 
useful lives and estimated net salvage of properties. The 
provision for depreciation of transportation equipment is 
charged indirectly to various asset and expense accounts.  

For federal income tax purposes, the Company uses an 
accelerated method of depreciation and generally uses 
the shortest life permitted for each class of assets.  

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: The cost of the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant nuclear fuel assemblies and components is 
amortized to operating expenses based on the quantity of 
heat produced for the generation of electric energy.  
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara Mohawk), 
on behalf of the Nine Mile 2 Plant cotenants, has entered 
into an agreement with the U.S. Department of Energy 
for the ultimate disposal and storage of spent nuclear 
fuel. The cotenants are assessed a fee for such disposal 
based upon the kilowatt-hours actually generated by the 
Nine Mile 2 Plant. These costs are charged to operating 
expense and recovered from customers through base 
rates or through the electric fuel cost adjustment clause 
described below. The Company cannot now determine 
whether such arrangements With the U.S. Department of 
Energy will ultimately provide for the satisfactory 
permanent disposal of such waste products.  

Rates and Revenues: Electric and gas retail rates 
applicable to intrastate service (other than contractually 
established rates for service to municipalities and 
governmental bodies) are regulated by'the PSC.  
Transmission rates and rates for electricity sold for resale 
in interstate commerce are regulated by the FERC.  

Revenues are recognized on the basis of cycle billings 
rendered monthly or bimonthly. Estimated revenues are 
accrued for those customers billed bimonthly whose 
meters are not read in the current month.  

The Company's tariff for retail electric service includes 
a fuel cost adjustment clause pursuant to which electric 
rates are adjusted to reflect changes in the average cost of 
fuels used for electric generation and in certain 
purchased power costs from the average of such costs 
included in base rates. The Company's tariff for gas 
service contains a comparable clause to adjust gas rates 
for changes in the price of purchased natural gas and in 
certain costs of manufactured gas.  

Deferred Electric Fuel Costs:The provisions of the 
electric fuel cost adjustment clause are such that changes 
in fuel costs incurred in the current month are not billed 

or credited to customers until subsequent months.  
Therefore, in order to match costs and revenues, the 
Company defers that portion of such costs incurred in the 
current month which will result in a cost adjustment in 
subsequent months.  

Pursuant to a 1985 Order of the PSC, the Company's 
electric fuel cost adjustment clause provides for a partial 
sharing of variations in fuel costs from the levels of fuel

costs projected in rate proceedings. The Company bears 
20% of the first $10 million of variation and 10% of the 
second $10 million of variation. The partial sharing 
applies to variations in actual fuel costs either above or 
below the projected levels; accordingly, the Company's 
maximum annual exposure, or benefit, is $3 million, 
before taxes.  

As a result of the adoption of the partial sharing 
electric fuel adjustment clause, the PSC adopted a 
symmetrical sharing arrangement for net revenues from 
sales to other utilities. Shortfalls below the imputed 
amount, as well as amounts above the imputed amount, 
will be shared 80% by the customers and 20% by the 
Company.  

Deferred Gas Costs: In accordance with requirements 
of the PSC applicable to all New York State regulated gas 
utilities, the Company defers each month any difference 
between the amount of gas costs incurred which is 
recoverable through the gas fuel cost adjustment clause 
(GAC) and GAC revenues. The net deferral remaining at 
August 31 of each year is amortized over a subsequent 
twelve-month period for both billing and accounting 
purposes.  

Deferred Electric Revenues: On occasion, revenues 
which are billed over a twelve-month rate year are 
designed to cover specific expenses which are projected 
to be incurred during the latter part of the rate year.  
Although there will be a matching of revenues and costs 
in the rate year there can be a mismatching of revenues 
and costs within calendar years. If the amount of the 
projected mismatch is material, the Company may 
petition the PSC to defer any revenues collected prior to 
the time the associated expenses are incurred and to 
restore such deferred revenues at the time the expenses 
are incurred. Such deferred accounting provides a better 
matching of revenues and costs during calendar years.  

Roseton Plant Litigation Settlement: During 1983, 
the Company and the other two co-owners of the 
Roseton Plant reached a settlement to recover damages 
for alleged negligence in the design and construction of 
the Roseton Plant by certain contractors which resulted 
in a boiler implosion. The $2.8 million amount recorded 
at December 31, 1990 in deferred charges represents the 
Company's 35% interest in the remaining balance of the 
$26.3 million settlement to be received over a ten-year 
period that commenced in 1984.  

NOTE 2- NINE MILE 2 PLANT 

General: The Nine Mile 2 Plant is located in Oswego 
County, New York, and is operated by Niagara Mohawk.  
The Nine Mile 2 Plant is owned as tenants in common 
by the Company (9% interest), Niagara Mohawk (41% 
interest), New York State Electric & Gas Corporation 
(18% interest), Long Island Lighting Company (18% 
interest) and Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation



(14% interest). The output of the Nine Mile 2 Plant, 
which has a rated net capability of 1,080 MW, is shared, 
and the operating expenses of the Plant are allocated to 
the cotenants, in the same proportions as the cotenants' 
respective ownership interests.  

An Interim Operating Agreement for the operation of 
the Plant was entered into by the cotenants in August 
1989 and was approved by the PSC in September 1990.  

Under that Agreement, Niagara Mohawk continues as 
operator of the Nine Mile 2 Plant, but all five owners 
share certain policy, budget arid managerial oversight 

functions. The Interim Operating Agreement expires on 
February 22, 1992.  

Disallowed Investment: In September 1986, the PSC 
approved a settlement (1986 Settlement) arising out of a 

PSC proceeding to determine the amount of expenditures 
incurred in the construction of the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
which should not be allowed to be recovered through 
rates. Under the 1986 Settlement the maximum amount 
of the Nine Mile 2 Plant expenditures to be included in 

the cotenants' rate bases is $4.16 billion, reduced by 
prepaid financing costs. The Company's earnings have 

been significantly reduced as a result of the cost 

disallowance under the 1986 Settlement because, for 

rate-making purposes, the Company is not allowed to' 
earn a return on the aftertax amount of Such disallowed 
investment and, therefore, derives no revenues from this 
disallowed investment.  

In December 1987, the Company recognized the 

Nine Mile 2 Plant disallowance for financial reporting 

purposes. The amounti of the aftertax wrile-off was 

$169.3 million, -which amount was based on an estimate 
of the Company's share of the disallowance.  

1990 Settlement Agreement: The cotenants of the

Nine Mile 2 Plant, the Staff of the New York State 
Department of Public Service (PSC Staff), the State 

Consumer Protection Board, the Attorney General of the 
State of New York (Attorney General) and other 
interested parties entered into an agreement, dated June 

6, 1990 (1990 Settlement Agreement), which would 
resolve open arid current issues related to the Nine Mile 
2 Plant including the following: (i) allocation of 
additional construction costs to the disallowance under 

the 1986 Settlement; (ii) resolution of the two court 
challenges related to the disallowance; (iii) allocation 
between shareholders and ratepayers of net proceeds 

from contractor litigations, referred to in the subcaption 

below entitled "Plant Litigation;" (iv) resolution of the 

petition filed on March 22, 1989 by the Attorney General 

to investigate the prudence of an extended mid-cycle 

outage of the Nine Mile 2 Plant, and seeking 
disallowance of some Utility replacement power costs 
associated with such outage; and (v) treatment and 

handling of future operation and maintenance expenses.  
The following table sets forth a summary of the total 

disallowance, reflecting both the 1986 Settlement and 

the 1990 Settlement Agreement:

Central 
Total Hudson's 

Project Interest 
(Thousands of Dollars)

Total Project Cost 
(including the 1990 
Settlement Agreement 
amounts) 

Allowable Costs per 
1986 Settlement 

Pretax Disallowance 
per 1990 Settlement 
Agreement 

Inducement Payment 
from Niagara Mohawk 

Adjusted Pretax 
Disallowance per 1990 
Settlement Agreement 

Tax Benefits Related to 
Disallowance 

Aftertax Disallowance

$6,521,631 

4,160,000 

2,361,631

2,361,631 

634,543 

$1,727,088

$614,252 

374,000 

240,252 

(26,100) 

214,152 

45,673 

$168,479

The resolution of issues related to replacement power 
costs, as part of the 1990 Settlement Agreement, will 
result in the Company refunding $2.286 million to its 
electric customers through its electric fuel cost adjust
ment clause (FAC) within a four-month period 
commencing with the Company's first FAC filing with 

the PSC after the date of the PSC's Order approving the 

1990 Settlement Agreement.  
The PSC approved the 1990 Settlement Agreement at 

a meeting in October 1990 and the Order finalizing that 
approval is expected to be issued by the PSC in early 
1991. Approval of the 1990 Settlement brings to a close 
all outstanding issues related to the cost of construction 
of the Nine Mile 2 Plant and the 1986 Settlement. Such 
approval did not require any adjustment to the amount 
written off by the Company in 1987. As a result of an 
earlier in-service date and a lower final cost for the 
project than assumed for the 1987 write-off, the Company 
had a reserve balance which was sufficient to cover both 
its share of the additional disallowance and the cost of its 

replacement power refund. The Company's Consolidated 
Balance Sheet at December 31, 1990 reflects the extin
guishment of the Nine Mile 2 Plant ieserve, the required 

adjustments to the Plant and related tax accounts and the 

provision for the replacement power refund.  

Plant Litigation: 
Main Steam Isolation Valves: In April 1987, the 

cotenants filed a complaint commencing an action in 
the Supreme Court of the State of New York, seeking 
damages of approximately $500 million from Gulf + 
Western, Inc., Crosby Valve & Gage Company and 
Wickes Manufacturing Company. Those companies 
designed and fabricated eight main steam isolation 
valves for the Nine Mile 2 Plant which were



subsequently replaced after problems were experienced 
in'establishing their leak integrity.  

The action was settled on May 11, 1990 with an 
agreement by the defendants to pay a specified amount 
of cash for the damages. Such cash payment has been 
received by the cotenants. The agreement also provides 
for mutual releases and confidential treatment of the 
agreement. While the original complaint sought relief 
in an amount substantially in excess of the settlement 
value, the Company regards this as a favorable 
settlement.  

Pursuant to the 1990 Settlement Agreement, if the 
combined proceeds from this litigation and the litigation 
referred to in the next subsection (Construction 
Management) exceed the combined costs of such 
litigation, then such excess will be shared equally 
between the Company's shareholders and ratepayers.  
If, however, the combined costs of litigation exceed the 
combined proceeds from such litigation, then any such 
excess costs will be borne solely by shareholders.  
At December 31, 1990, the gross proceeds from this 
litigation were recorded as a deferred credit and the costs 
of such litigation were recorded as a deferred debit.  

Construction Management: In August 1988, the 
cotenants filed a complaint commencing an action in the 
United States District Court for the Northern District of 
New York against the following three corporations 
involved in the construction of the Nine Mile 2 Plant: 
Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation, the architect
engineer and construction manager for the Nine Mile 2 
Plant and ITT Fluid Products Corporation and ITT Fluid 
Technology Corporation, successor companies to ITT 
Grinnell, which fabricated and erected piping for the 
Nine Mile 2 Plant. The complaint seeks damages for, 
among other things, breach of contractual and 
professional obligations in the performance by said 
defendants under their contracts which resulted in 
delays, redesign, reconstruction and higheri costs for the 
completed work. The Company cannot predict Whether 
the action will be successful or the amount of damages, 
if any, which may be recovered.  

GE Settlement: The cotenants entered into an 
agreement, dated January 26, 1989, with the General 
Electric Company (GE) relating to certain disputes 
which arose in connection with the Iuclear steam supply 
system (NSSS) portion of the construction of the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant, providing for settlementmutual releases 
and confidentiality of the specific elements of said 
agreement. Said agreement provides that GE will supply 
certain goods and services to the cotenants over a period 
of years without cost or at a reduced cost. The agreement 
also provides for certain indemnification, including a 
limited reimbursement for legal expense, of GE by the 
cotenants. The Company regards the agreement with 
GE as a favorable settlement.  

Pursuant to the 1990 Settlement Agreement, all 
proceeds from this settlement in excess of legal costs will 
be shared equally between the Company's shareholders

and ratepayers., Because these amounts were known 
prior to the conclusion of the settlement discussions, 
the full amount of the shareholder's portion has been 
included as a credit to the additional disallowance 
resulting from the 1990 Settlement Agreement and 
reflected in the above table.  

Operational Matters: 
NRC Monitoring: In December 1988, the Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission (NRC) categorized the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant as requiring close monitoring. The NRC's 
conclusion was based upon its assessment of the per
formance of the Nine Mile 2 Plant during its first year 
of operation. The NRC staff indicated that increased 
licensee and NRC management attention was needed to 
ensure that performance improvement is achieved at the 
Nine Mile 2 Plant. In June 1989, January and June 1990 
and January 1991, the NRC continued to list Units 1 and 
2 in its category of plants that require close monitoring.  
(Unit No-,1 is located adjacent to the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
and is owned and operated solely by Niagara Mohawk).  
The Company is unable to predict what impact, if any, 
the NRC's action may have on the future operation of the 
Nine Mile 2 Plant.  

In the spring of 1990, the NRC completed a systematic 
assessment of licensee performance (SALP) review of the 
Nine Mile Point Station (includes both Unit No. 1 and 
Unit No. 2) for the period March 1989 through February 
1990. Of the seven functional areas reviewed, three were 
classified as Category 3, the lowest ranking under SALP, 
representing acceptable, although minimally adequate, 
safety performance. The SALP report represented a slight 
improvement over the SALP report received by Niagara 
Mohawk in the spring of 1989. Niagara Mohawk has 
advised the Company that it has responded to the SALP 
report, that no substantial corrective actions were 
required and that it believes the SALP report will not 
prevent the continued operation of the Nine Mile 2 Plant.  
The Company is unable to predict the outcome of the 
SALP review scheduled for the spring of 1991.  

Niagara Mohawk reported that, on February 13, 1990, 
it received a report discussing the results of an inspection 
conducted at the Nine Mile Point Station by NRC site 
resident, inspectors in September and October 1989.  
Niagara Mohawk reported that it was also notified by 
the NRC Region I Administrator that as a result of this 
same inspection a Notice of Violation has been issued 
with respect to the Nine Mile 2 Plant. The Notice of 
Violation, which has been categorized as Severity Level 
IV (the second least severe level) and thus may result in 
a fine, was precipitated by the inspectors' conclusion 
that the Nine Mile 2 Plant personnel had violated post
maintenance testing requirements of the unit cooler for 
a control room. Niagara Mohawk advised the Company 
that it has responded to the NRC and is correcting the 
deficiencies identified in said report.  

Institute of Nuclear Power Operations: In August 
1990, the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (INPO), 
an industry sponsored oversight group, performed an



on-site evaluation of both of the units of the Nine Mile 
Point Nuclear Station. INPO reported deficiencies in 
several key areas related to operator performance, 
enforcement of station standards, documentation of 
in-house events and engineering support of plant 
operations. NiagaraMohawk has advised the Company 
that even though a number of these issues had been 
previously noted in the last INPO evaluation, INPO 
did observe a strong commitment and positive attitude 
toward improving performance. Niagara Mohawk has 
provided to INPO a response to the findings and has 
advised the Company that it has made commitments
to INPO to address those findings.  

Other: The PSC can institute proceedings to review 
plant outages which extend beyond their planned duration 
and has the authority to impose penalties associated with 
replacement power costs incurred during such outages to 
the extent that they are determined to have been 
imprudently extended. As stated above, the issue of 
responsibility for replacement power costs associated with 
the Nine Mile 2 Plant operations from its commercial 
operation date of April 5, 1988 through January 19, 1990 
was addressed in the 1990 Settlement Agreement.  

The first refueling outage for the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
commenced on September 5, 1990, and was expectedto 
be completed by mid-December. However, the outage 
was extended into January 1991 as a result of increased 
work scope. On January 30, 1991, the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
was returned to service. The next scheduled refueling 
outage for the Nine Mile 2 Plant is expected to begin 
on February 29, 1992. However, an indication on a pipe-, 
weld was discovered to have increased in size during an 
inspection conducted by Niagara Mohawk during the 
recently completed refueling outage. Based upon the 
results of this inspection, the NRC has notified Niagara 
Mohawk that it mnust reinspect the weld within five to 
nine months of return of the Nine Mile 2 Plant to service 
after completion of the current refueling outage, or 
provide justification to the NRC for waiting to conduct 
the reinspection until the next refueling outage. Niagara 
Mohawk has inforied thie Company that performing 
this inspection would require shutdown of-the Plant for 
approximately ten days. Niagara Mohawk has also 
advised the Company that it intends to provide justifica
tion to the NRC for continued operation until the next 
refueling outage; however, no assurance can be provided 
that the NRC will accept Niagara Mohawk's justification.  

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs: NRC 
regulations require the direct funding of eventual 
decommissioning costs of nuclear facilities. The 
Company, effective as of March 1, 1990, established a 
master trust in order to comply with these NRC 
requirements. Included in such trust is a Qualified Fund 
under the applicable provisions of the federal tax law 
which, based on receipt of a favorable ruling from the 
Internal Revenue Service, dated July 19, 1990, will 
enable the Company to take advantage of certain federal 
income tax benefits available to such Qualified Funds.  

Estimated decommissioning costs for the Nine Mile 2 
Plant are currently being recovered in rates through an

annual allowance and charged to operations through 
depreciation charges. The Company's 9% share of costs' 
to decommission the Nine Mile 2 Plant, which is 
expected to begin in the year 2027, is estimated to be 
approximately $118.5 million ($20.6 million in 1990 
dollars), based on an estimate included in the decommis
sioning plan filed with the NRC on July 18, 1990. The 
annual allowance for recovery during the period 
August 1, 1988 through May 31, 1990 was $324,000.  
Effective June 1, 1990, the PSC authorized recovery, on 
an annual basis, of $212,000 for internal decommis
sioning funding (i.e., funds held by the Company) and 
$787,000 for external decommissioning funding (e.g.  
funds held in trust). The external decommissioning trust 
fund at December 31, 1990 amounted to $880,295, which 
is reflected in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet 
in "Other Property and Investments." 

The Company cannot now determine whether the 

decommissioning costs presently allowed in rates by the 
PSC, or the estimated costs contained in the plan filed with 
the NRC, will ultimately be adequate to decommission the 

Nine Mile 2 Plant in accordance with then existing law, 
regulation, technology and/or costs. The Company believes 
that decommissioning costs, if higher than currently 
estimated, will ultimately be recovered in the rate process, 
although no such assurance can be given.  

NOTE 3- FEDERAL INCOME TAX 

General: The Company's general policy with respect 
to accounting for the federal income tax is to reflect in 
income the estirated amount of income tax currently 
payable and to provide for deferred taxes on, timing 
differences between book and taxable income to the 
extent permitted for rate-making purposes.  

Depreciation: In computing depreciation for federal 
income tax purposes for years subsequent to 1980, the 
Company used the Accelerated Cost Recovery System 
(ACRS) as prescribed in the Economic Recovery Tax Act 
of 1981 (ERTA); however, commencing in 1987, the 
Company has complied with the changes to ACRS 
required by the Tax Reform Act of 1986 (TRA-86).  

Investment Tax Credit: TRA-86 repealed the invest
ment tax credit for property additions placed in service 
after December 31, 1985, except for property additions 
covered by the related transitional rules. The-Company's 
investment in the Danskammer Generating Plant and the 
Nine Mile 2 Plant, as well as certain other property 
additions, meets these transitional rules and, therefore, 
the related investment tax credit for these projects 
continued to reduce federal income taxes in 1988.  

With respect to periods preceding TRA-86, the 
additional investment tax credit which resulted from 
increasing the rate of such credit from 4% to 10%, as 
provided by the Tax Reduction Act of 1976, was deferred 
and is being amortized over the life of the related 
property in accordance with a Statement of Policy of the 

PSC. Effective July 18, 1981, the Company was 
authorized by the PSC to defer the full 10% investment



tax credit associated with the Company's participation in 
the Nine Mile 2 Plant to be amortized over the life of that 
Plant. The Company commenced full deferral of its 
investment tax credit on October 22, 1982, pursuant to 
PSC authorization and inaccordance with ERTA.

Components of federal income tax: 
The following is a summary of the components of, 

federal income tax as reported in the Consolidated 

Statement of Income:

1990

Charged to operating expense: 
Federal income tax ....... .............................  
Deferred income tax ...........................  

Income tax charged to operating expense .........................  

Charged (credited) to other income and deductions: 
Federal income tax .............................  
D eferred incom e tax ............................................................  
Income tax charged (credited) 
to other income and deductions ..................  

Total federal income tax ........ . .............. . ......  

Reconciliation: 
The following is a reconciliation between the amount of 

federal income tax computed on net income before taxes at 
the statutory rate and the amount reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of Income: 

Net income ...... .............................  
Federal incom e tax ............ ................................................  
D eferred incom e tax .................................................................  

Net income before taxes.......... .......................  

Computed tax @ 34% statutory rate ....................................  
Increase (decrease),to computed tax due to: 

Tax depreciation ...................................................................  
Investm ent tax credit .............. ........................................  
Cost of rem oval. .... .. ................ ..... ........................  
Deferred NM P-2 expenses ... .............. .........................  
Capitalized interest .........................................................  
Alternative minimum tax .....................................  
U nbilled revenues ................................................................  
Repair allow ance ............................................................  
O ther ................................... .... .................................  

Federal income tax ..............................  
Deferred incom e tax .......................................................  

Total federal incom e tax .......................................  

Deferred income tax: 
The following is a summary of the components of 

deferred income tax: 

Tax depreciation........................................  
Investm ent tax credit ................................................................  
C ost of rem oval .....................................................................  
Deferred NMP-2 expenses ........... .........  
Capitalized interest ............................................................  
Alternative minimum tax ................... ..............  

Unbiled revenues........... .................  Unbilled revenues ... ...... ........ ........ ...........................................  

Repair allowance ...............................  
Other .......................................  

Deferred income tax ...........................

$15,110 
7,346 

22,456 

(4,198) 
2,116 

'(2,082 

$20,374

$41,035 
10,912 
9,462 

$61,409 

$20,879 

(11,704) 
(23) 

(704) 
(476) 
449 

3,237 
1,376 
(591) 

(1,531) 
10,912 
9,462 

$20,374

$14, 725 

(1,382) 

(2) 

(187) 

(3,237), 
(1,376) 

453 
468 

$ 9,462

1989 

(Thousands of Dollars)

$10,253 
9,575 

19,828 

(3,646) 

2,736 

(910) 

$18,918

$39,117 

6,607 
12,311 

$58,035 

$19,732 

(13,337) 
(173) 
(586) 
(265) 
(301) 

2,650 
1,458 
(429) 

(2,142) 
6,607 

12,311 
$18,918

$17,589 

(1,200) 
(83) 

244 
(2,650) 
(1,637) 

312 
(264) 

$12,311

1988

$(2,817) 
24,660 

21,843 

(5,747) 

5,044 

(703) 

$21,140

$43,804 
(8,564) 
29,704 

$64,944 

$22,081 

(18,136) 
(7,950) 
(1,243) 
(3,102) 
(2,082) 
3,241 
2,258 

(3,481) 
(150) 

(8,564) 
29,704 

$21,140

$22,912 
6,779 

586 
1,524 
1,329 

(3,241) 
(2,167) 
3,809 

(1,827) 
$29,704 
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 96: In December 1987, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 96, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes" (SFAS 96). This 
Statement requires a company to adjust its deferred-tax 
balances, adhering to enacted tax laws, to reflect an 
estimate of its future tax liability based on temporary 
differences between book and tax bases.  

Based on the studies it has performed to date, the 
Company estimates that the cumulative net amount of 
income tax timing differences for which deferred income 
taxes have not-been provided was approximately 
$120 million at December 31, 1990. Based upon the 
Company's present Understanding of SFAS 96, such 
differences would have no immediate effect on its results 
of operation, but would result in recognition on the 
balance sheet of additional amounts of income taxes to 
be paid in the future and to be recovered from customers 
as a cost of service through the regulatory process. SFAS 
96 must be adopted not later than the first quarter of 
1992. The Company has not made a final determination 
as to when it will adopt SFAS 96 and the niethod of 
adoption.  

NOTE4 - SHORT-TERM BORROWING 

ARRANGEMENTS 

Effective December 14, 1983, the Company entered 
into a revolving credit/term loan facility with five 
commercial banks. The revolving credit agreement 
(Agreement) was for a period of seven years, at the end 
of which the Company had the option to convert the 
Agreement to a three-year term loan. The Agreement 
which provided for borrowing up to $70 million was 
reduced-to $50 million effective November 1, 1989.  

Effective December 17, 1990, the Company entered 
into a new revolving credit agreement with four 

commercial banks for borrowing Up to $50 1million ° 

through December 14, 1997 (New Agreement). The New 
Agreement gives the Company the option of borrowing 
at either the prime/federal Iflinds rate, or three other 
money market rates if such rates are lower. The New 
Agreement also provides for the payment of an annual

commitment fee of 1/16 of 1% per annum on the 
unborrowed amount and a facility fee of 1/8 of 1,% per 
annum on the total amount of the facility. Compensating 
balances are not required under the New Agreement. In 
addition, the Compfany c0ntinues to maintain confirmed 
lines of credit totaling $2 million with three regional 
banks.  

The amount of outstanding short-term debt at 
December 31, 1990 was $28 mnillion, consisting of 
commercial paper. All commercial paper obligations are 
supported by credit agreements maintained with the 
banks. There was no short-ternm debt outstaiding at 
December 31, 1989.  

'NOTE 5 - CAPITALIZATION - CAPITAL STOCK 

Par Value Stock: The shareholders, at the annual, 
meeting of shareholders held April 5, 1988, adopted a 
proposal to amend the Certificate of Incorporation of the 
Company to change- the 30 million authorized shares of 
common stock without par value to par value of $5 per 
share. By Order issued and effective February 9, 1989, 
the PSC approved the change. This change in the par 
value of the Company's comnon stock resulted in a 
transfer in 1989 of $ 167.973 million to paid-in capital 
from common stock.  

At the annual meeting of shareholders held April 3, 
1990, the shareholders approved an amendment to the 
Company's Certificate of Incorporation to provide for a 
Fair Price Amendment. The Fair Price Amendment is 
designed generally to assure that all shareholders receive 
the same price and/or equal treatment for their shares of 
common stock upon an offer for the Company's common 
stock under a proposed busiIess combination in which a 
controlling or substantial shareholder of the Company 
has an interest. This amendment supplements the fair 
price protections currently available under New York 
statutory law. An amendment to the Certificate of 
Incorporation to affect this fair price provision was filed 
on April 5, 1990 by the Departinent of State of the State 
of New York.



Common Stock, $5 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized: 
Paid-In Capital:

Common Stock

January 1, 1988 ........................................................  
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan.....................  

December 31, 1988.....................................................  
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan.....................  
Issued under customer stock purchase plan..................  
Transferred to paid-in capital ....................................  

December 31, 1989.....................................................  
Issued under dividend reinvestment'plan.....................  
issued under customer stock purchase plan ..................  

December 31,f 1990.....................................................

Cumulative Preferred Stock, $100 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized:

Redemption Price

Without 
Sinking Fund:

Series 

4 '/2% 

4.75% 
4.35% 
4.96% 
7.72% 
7.44% 
8.40%

Current 

$107.00 
106.75 
102.00 
101.00 
101.00 
103.08 
102.80

Through 

1/31/93 
5/31/92

Eventual 
Minimum 

$107.00 
106.75 
102.00 
101.00 
101.00 
101.22 
101.00

With 
Sinking Fund:

103.00 3/31/93 100.00
Total ................................................................................

The cumulative preferred stock, without sinking fund, 
is redeemable only at the option of the Company and the 
sum payable per share is the then current redemption 
price plus accrued dividends thereon. In the event of 
involuntary liquidation, the redemption price is $100 per 
share plus accrued dividends.  

The cumulative preferred stock, with sinking fund, 
provides for the annual retirement of 8,000 shares, at 
$100 per share, plus accrued dividends, on each March 
30, commencing March 30, 1993. The dividend to be 
paid will be adjusted each quarter and will be declared

Shares Outstanding 
December 3 1, 
1990 and 1989 

70,300 
20,000 
60,000 
60,000 

130,000 
120,000 
150,000 
610,300 

200,000 
810,300

at a rate which is 1% per annumn below the highest of 
three specific U.S. Treasury Rates. The rate will never be 
less than 6% or greater than 12.5% per annum. The 
adjusted rates applied for each quarter of 1990 ranged 
between 7.16% and 8.20%, compared with the range of 
7.36% and 8.36% experienced during 1989 and 7.72% to 
8.40% experienced during 1988.  

Expenses incurred on issuance of capital stock are 
accumulated and reported as a reduction in total capital 
stock and are not being amortized.

Shares 

Outstanding 

14,359,555 
203,826 

14,563,381 
170,078 

7,889 

14,741,348 
179,323 
30,285 

14,950,956

Amount 

($000) 

$236,079 
3,955 

$240,034 
1,607 

39 
(167,973) 
$ 73,707 

897 
151 

$ 74,755

Paid-In 

Capital 

($000) 

$ 50,067 

$ 50,067 
2,166 

149 
167,973 

$220,355 
3,067 

535 
$223,957



NOTE 6 - CAPITALIZATION - LONG-TERM DEBT

Details of long-term debt are shown below:

December 3 1, 
1990 1989 

(Thousands of Dollars).

Series 
First Mortgage Bonds 

13 % 
14-1/8% 

8 '/8% 
11 % 

7 '/8% 

91/8% 
7 /% 
9 V4A% 

10-1/8% 
6'/4% 

10 /% 
8.375%

Maturity Date 
(Net of Sinking Fund requirements): 
December 4, 1992....................................  
June 12, 1994.........................................  
September 1, 1994 ..................................  
July 2, 1995...........................................  
January 15, 1999 .....................................  
June1, 2000 ..........................................  
February 1, 2002 .....................................  
April 15, 2004.........................................  
November 1, 2005....................................  
June1, 2007 ..........................................  
September 15, 2009 .................................  
December 1, 2028....................................

45,000 
50,000 
16,000 
20,000 
25,000 
20,000 
15,000 
20,000 
4,500 

20,000 
16,700 

252,200

$ 35,000 
45,000 
50,000 
20,000 
20,000 
25,000 
20,000 
15,000 
20,000 

4,500 
20,000 
16,700 

291,200

Promissory Notes issued in connection with the sale by the 
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 
(NYSERDA) of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds:

1984 Series A 
1984 Series B 
1985 Series A 
1985 Series B 
1987 Series A 
1987 Series B

October 1, 2014.......................................  
October 1, 2014.......................................  
November 1, 2020....................................  
November 1, 2020....................................  
June1, 2027...........................................  
June1, 2027...........................................

Promissory Notes (net of sinking fund requirements): 
4.85% December 1, 1995....................................  

Secured Notes Payable of Subsidiary..........................................  

Unamortized Premium (Discount) on Debt - Net ...........................  

Total long-term debt ................................

16,700 
16,700 
36,250 
36,000 
33,700 
9,900 

149,250 

2,808 

3,546 

$407,638

On December 4, 1990, the 13 % Series First Mortgage 
Bonds, due December 4, 1992, were optionally redeemed 
at par. The funds required to finance this redemption 
were obtained from a combination of short-term debt, 
the liquidation of temporary cash investments and the 
sale of accounts receivables.  

The pollution control bonds, Series A and B, issued in 
1984, bore interest at 7 1/2% per annum through 
September 30, 1989. Effective October 1, 1989, the 
Company exercised its one-time option to convert each 
series to a long-term rate fixed at 7.375%.  

The pollution control, bonds, Series A and B, issued in 
1985 are variable rate obligations subject to weekly 
repricing and investor tender. The pollution control 
bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1987 are also variable 
rate obligations subject to weekly repricing and investor 
tender. The Company has a one-time option for each 
series for both the 1985 and 1987 bonds to convert to a 
long-term fixed rate.  

In its rate orders, the PSC has provided for full 
recovery of interest cost on the 1985 and 1987 Series

variable rate obligations. Deferred accounting has been 
granted for any variation (above or below) between 
actual interest rates and those allowed in rates. Such 
deferred balances are to be disposed of in future rate 
cases.  

The Company has renegotiated certain covenants 
contained in the Reimbursement Agreements relating to 
its obligation under the 1985 and 1987 Pollution Control 
Revenue Bonds of NYSERDA. The covenant requiring 
the Company to issue additional First Mortgage Bonds 
should its common equity ratio fall below 35% has been 
eliminated and the covenant requiring the Company to 
maintain its common equity ratio at a level not less than 
32% has been changed to increase such level to 33%.  
The Company's common equity ratio at December 3 1, 
1990 was 39%.  

Expenses incurred on debt issues and any discount or 
premium on debt are deferred and amortized over the 
lives of the related issues.  

Secured notes payable of a subsidiary of the C ompany 
consist principally of term loans to finance the installa-

16,700 
16,700 
36,250 
36,000 
33,700 

9,900 
149,250 

2,890 

4,309 

(209) 

$447,440



tion of a cogeneration facility and related energy 
conservation equipment at a Massachusetts manu
facturing company. Such loans accrue interest at the 
prime lending rate plus 3/4 of 1 % and are amortizing in 
60 equal installments through December 31, 1993. Such 
loans are secured principally by certain power purchase 
agreements and project assets.  

NOTE 7 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Retirement Income Plan: The Company has a 
noncontributory retirement income plan (Plan) covering 
substantially all of its employees. The Plan provides 
pension benefits that are based on the employee's 
compensation and years of service. It has been the 
Company's practice to provide periodic updates to the 
benefit formula stated in the Plan.  

Effective January 1, 1987, the Company implemented 
SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions" 
(SIAS 87). The Company's funding policy, since such 
implementation, is to make annual contributions equal 
to the amount of net periodic pension cost, but not in 
excess of the maximum allowable tax-deductible 
contribution nor less than the minimum requirement 
under the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act of 1974.  

Approximately 73% of the cost for both years 1990 
and 1989 and 72% for the year 1988 were charged to 
expense. The allocation of pension costs between capital 
and expense follows the payroll distribution.  

Net periodic pension cost for 1990 and 1989 includes 
the following components:

Service cost - benefits earned 
during the period ..............  

Interest cost on projected 
benefit obligation ..............  

Actual return on plan assets ....  
Net amortization and deferral...  

Net periodic pension cost .....

1990 1989 
(Thousands of Dollars 

$4,205 $4,445 

10,991 9,994 
2,454 (30,468 

(14,561) 18,946 
$ 3,089 $ 2,917

The following table sets forth the Plan's funded status 
at September 30, 1990 and 1989: 

1990 1989 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations: 
Accumulated benefit obligation, 

including vested benefits 
of $125,118 and $112,846...$127,407 $115,164 

Projected benefit obligation for 
service rendered to date .... $152,312 $145,763 

Plan assets at market value (a) ... 164,108 172,362 
Excess of Plan assets over 

projected benefit obligation ....... 11,796 26,599 
Unrecognized net (gain) ............. (11,075) (20,367) 
Prior service cost not yet recognized 

in net periodic pension cost ..... 3,338
Unrecognized net asset being 

amortized over 15.25 years ........ (7,148) (7,783) 
Amount contributed to Plan during 

fourth quarter........................ - 1,551 
Pension liability recognized in 

the Balance Sheet ................ $ (3,089)(b)$ 

(a) At the valuation date, approximately 96% of the 
Plan's assets were invested in equities and bonds.  
The remainder was invested primarily in convertible 
securities and real estate.  

(b) The Plan is deemed to be fully funded for federal 
income tax purposes, therefore, the Company did not 
make any contributions to the Plan during 1990.  

The weighted average discount rate and rate of future 
compensation levels used in determining the actuarial 
present value of the projected benefit obligations under 
the Plan were 8 percent and 7 1/2 percent, respectively, 
for 1990 and 1989. The expected long-term rate of return 
on Plan assets was 9 percent for 1990 and 8 1/2 percent 
for 1989.



Other Post-Employment Benefits: In addition to 
providing pension benefits, the Company provides 
certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired 
employees. Substantially all of the Company's 
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they 
reach retirement age while working for the Company.  
These and similar benefits for active employees are 
provided through insurance companies whose premiums 
are based on the benefits paid during the year. The 
annual insurance premiums recorded by the Company 
for providing these benefits were $6.5 12 million for 
1990, $5.747 million for 1989 and $5.3 16 million for 
1988. The cost of providing retirees with these benefits is 
not separable from the cost of providing those benefits 
for the active employees.  

In December 1990. the FASB issued SFAS No. 106, 
"Employers' Accounting for Post-Retirement Benefits 
Other than Pensions" (SFAS 106), which must be 
adopted not later than the first quarter of 1993. This 
Statement requires that an employer's obligation for post 
retirement benefits expected to be provided to or 
for an employee be fully accrued by the date that the 
employee attains full eligibility for all benefits expected 
to be received by that employee, any beneficiaries and 
covered dependents even if the employee is expected to 
render additional service beyond that date. Currently, the 
Company records the costs of providing such benefits 
when paid. The Company has not made a final 
determination as to when it will adopt SFAS 106. The 
Company believes that the increased costs resulting from 
the adoption of SFAS -106 would be recovered through 
the normal regulatory process; however, the PSC has not 
yet issued an order regarding the proper accounting and 
rate-making treatment for such costs.  

NOTE 8 - SALE OF RECEIVABLES AND RESERVE 
FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS 

The Company has a program to sell on a daily basis, 
without recourse, its accounts receivables from retail 
customers., Such program provides the Company with 
cash immediately and, therefore, reduces its working 
capital requirements. The amount of the outstanding 
receivables sold as of December 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988 
were $8.2 million, $11.8 million and $28.8 million, 
respectively. The average daily amount of accounts 
receivable sold was $5.1 million in 1990, $11.9 million 
in 1989 and $33.6 million in 1988, and the weighted 
average discount rate was 8.09% for 1990, 9.32%0/ for 
1989 and 10.01% for 1988.  

The costs associated with the sale of receivables are 
charged to operating expense and amounted to $400,000 
in 1990, $1.1 million in 1989 and $3.3 million in 1988.  

The Company had an uncollectible reserve balance of 
$950,000 at December 31, 1990 and $400,000 at 
December 31, 1989.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Roseton Plant: The Company currently has a 35% 
undivided interest in the ownership and output of the 
1,200 MW Roseton Plant. The Company is acting as 
agent for the cotenant owners with respect to operation 
of the Roseton Plant. Generally, the owners share the 
costs and expenses of the operation of the Roseton Plant 
in accordance with their respective ownership interests.  
The Company's share of direct operating expense for the 
Roseton Plant is included in the appropriate expense 
classification in the accompanying Consolidated 
Statement of Income.  

The Company has the option to purchase the interests 
of Niagara Mohawk (25%) and of Consolidated Edison 
Company of New York, Inc. (40%) in the Roseton Plant 
in December 2004. Exercise of such option is subject to 
the approval of the PSC.  

in order to make provision for anticipated require
ments for additional generating capacity commencing in 
the mid- 1990's, the Company and Niagara Mohawk have 
entered into an agreement (Amendment) revising the 
option which the Company has to buy Niagara 
Mohawk's interest in the Roseton Plant. Pursuant to the 
Amendment, Niagara Mohawk will sell to the Company 
a 2.5 % interest in the Roseton Plant on December 3 1, 
1994 and on each succeeding December 3 1, through and 
including December 31, 2003, which will be all of 
Niagara Mohawk's interest in the Roseton Plant. In 
exchange, Niagara Mohawk will have the option to 
repurchase from the Company up to a 25% interest in 
the Roseton Plant in December 2004. The prices for the 
purchases will be based on the depreciated book cost of 
the Roseton Plant assuming straight-line amortization to 
provide for a fully amortized facility as of December 3 1, 
2009. Pursuant to the Amendment, the Company retains 
the option to repurchase Niagara Mohawk's remaining 
interest in that Plant when that Plant reaches the end of 
its physical life.  

By joint petition filed with the PSC on February 29, 
1988, the Company and Niagara Mohawk requested the 
PSC to approve the transfers of interests in the Roseton 
Plant contemplated by the Amendment. On July 19, 
1988, the PSC issued an order establishing a proceeding 
to consider such joint petition. Among the issues 
identified by the PSC for consideration in such proceed
ing are (i) the relationship of the process for bidding for 
additional capacity, set forth in a June 1988 PSC order 
applicable to the major New York State electric utilities, 
to such transfers, (ii) the potential for demand side 
management as an alternative to the transfers contem
plated by the Amendment and (iii) certain technical, 
accounting and forecasting issues regarding the 
information and studies submitted by the Company 
and Niagara Mohawk in support of the joint petition.  

In May 1989, the Company and the PSC Staff reached 
a Stipulation Agreement indicating that, giving 
consideration to expected demand side management 
activities, the proposed transfers of interest were one 
alternative which would meet the Company's future



needs for power. The Company has also advised the PSC 
thiat the Company will issue a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) following the PSC approval of the form of the RHr 
for alternative power supply arrangements 
approximating the capacity reflected in the proposed 
transfers of interest, so as to test the reasonableness of 
the proposed transfers of interests. The PSC issued an 
Order, etfective October 4, 1990, approving the form of 
the revised RFPs for use by the Company in said process 
of soliciting bids for additional capacity. The Company 
cannot predict how such bids as may be received in 
response to the RFP would compare to the proposed 
transfers of interest, nor can the Company predict what 
action the PSC may ultimately take in connection with 
the joint petition.  

Construction Program: Reference is made to 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations" for information 
regarding the Company's construction program for the 
five-year period 1991-1995.  

Nuclear Liability and Insurance: The Price
Anderson Act is a federal law which limits the public 
liability which can be imposed in respect of a nuclear 
incident at a licensed nuclear electric generating facility.  
Such Act also provides for assessment of owners of all 
licensed nuclear units in the United States for losses in 
excess of certain limits due to a nuclear incident at any 
such licensed unit. Under the provisions of the Price
Anderson Act, the Company's potential assessment 
(based on its 9% ownership interest in the Nine Mile 2 
Plant and assuming that the other Nine Mile 2 Plant 
cotenants were to contribute their proportionate shares 
of the potential assessments) would be $5.67 million 
(subject to adjustment for inflation) and the Company 
could be assessed $283,500 (subject to adjustment for 
inflation) in respect to an additional surcharge, but 
would be limited to a maximum assessment of $900,000 
in any year with respect to any nuclear incident. The 
public liability insurance coverage of $200 million 
required under the Price-Anderson Act for the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant is provided through Niagara Mohawk.  

The Company also carries insurance to cover the 
additional costs of replacement power incurred by the 
Company in the event of a prolonged accidental outage 
of the Nine Mile 2 Plant. Under this insurance 
arrangement, up to $258,000 per week covers the 
additional costs of replacement power if the Nine Mile 2 
Plant experiences a continuous accidental outage which 
extends beyond 21 weeks. The payments for replacement 
power will continue for 52 weeks after expiration of the 
2 1-week deductible period, and thereafter, the insurer 
shall pay 67% of the weekly indemnity for a second 52
week period and 33% for a third 52-week period.  

The Company is insured as to its respective interest in 
the Nine Mile 2 Plant under property damage insurance 
provided through Niagara Mohawk. The insurance 
coverage provides $500 million of primary property 
damage coverage for Units 1 and 2 of the Nine Mile Plant

and $1.375 billion of excess property damage coverage 
for the Nine Mile 2 Plant. Such insurance covers 
decontamination costs, debris removal and repair and/or 
replacement of property.  

The Company intends to maintain, or cause to be 
maintained, insurance against nuclear risks at the Nine 
Mile 2 Plant, provided such coverage can be obtained at 
an acceptable cost.  

Natural Gas Supply: The Company has three long
term contracts for the supply of natural gas each of which 
is terminable by either party thereto upon twelve
month's prior written notice. One such supply contract 
provides for (i) firm transportation services, which will 
allow the Company to purchase gas directly from a third
party supplier at a cost lower than pipeline gas even 
during winter months when interruptible transportation 
is curtailed, and (ii) the ability to inject third-party gas 
into storage which should result in an overall lower cost 
of gas supply. The Company's aggregate gas storage 
capability is 32,672 mcf. per day. The Company also has 
a contract for the supply of vaporized liquefied natural 
gas which will remain in effect through September 30, 
1992 and will continue from year to year thereafter 
unless terminated by either party upon one year's prior 
written notice. Generally, all such contracts and asso
ciated tariffs are approved by the FERC.  

The Company has entered into agreements to obtain 
an additional peak period gas supply of 21,536 mcf. per 
day from two separate sources to be phased in through 
November 1992, one agreement is subject to final 
regulatory approvals and completion of construction 
schedules. The Company has also entered into a 
memorandum of understanding providing for obtaining 
up to 100,000 mcf. of gas per day for use as boiler fuel at 
the Roseton Plant during off-peak periods, subject to 
obtaiing regulatory approvals and completion of the 
facilities necessary to supply such gas to, and enable 
such gas to be burned at, the Roseton Plant.  

A major portion (19,600 mcf.) of such 21,536 mcf. of 
gas and all of the Roseton Plant gas is to be supplied 
from sources in Canada through a major new pipeline 
project to be constructed by Iroquois Gas Transmission 
System (JGTS); which project is subject to regulatory 
approvals. On November 6, 1990, the National Energy 
Board of Canada favorably determined a tolling regime 
and certain economic feasibility issues with respect to a 
certificate to build Canadian pipeline facilities which 
will interconnect with the pipeline of the IGTS project 
and, on November 15, 1990, FERC issued its final 
Certificate of Authorization for the IGTS project. No 
prediction can be made whether such regulatory 
approvals will be challenged judicially or if all other 
requisite regulatory approvals will be obtained for such 
project or if the Company's agreements for the purchase 
of such gas will receive regulatory approval.  

Take-or-Pay Gas Costs: Many interstate gas pipeline 
companies entered into contracts with gas producers 
which required the pipeline companies to pay for a



minimum amount of gas whether or not the gas is 
actually taken from the producer (take-or-pay costs).  
Pursuant to FERC authorization, the Company's gas 
suppliers have included certain amounts of their take-or
pay costs in the rates charged to the Company.  

The PSC in October 1988 commenced a proceeding to 
determine among other things, the recoverability and 
allocation in gas rates of New York State distribution 
companies of contract take-or-pay costs charged them by 
pipeline suppliers. In connection with such proceeding, 
the PSC has issued several orders which have directed 
among other things that 65% of take-or-pay costs being 
incurred by the Company may be recovered through 
current rates, subject to refund. Charges not subject to 
such conditional recovery are deferred with interest for 
subsequent consideration by the PSC. The amounts of 
these deferred charges at December 31, 1990 and 1989 
were $1,104,598 and $508,557, respe 'ctively.  

In comments filed with the PSC, the Company has 
contended that there is no basis on which the 
responsibility for its pipeline suppliers' take-or-pay 
liability can be attributed to it. in addition, it is the 
Company's position that the PSC lacks any authority to 
deny it recovery of costs included in FERC approved gas 
rates and would intend to oppose any attempt by the 
PSC to require it to absorb any take-or-pay or contract 
reformation costs which are included in its pipeline 
suppliers' FERC approved rates.  

The Company is unable at this time to estimate the 
amount of take-or-pay costs which may ultimately be 
included in its pipeline suppliers' charges to it or to 
predict what action the PSC might take to require the 
Company to absorb any portion of such costs. The final 
amount of such costs will depend on FERC proceedings, 
the PSC proceeding and certain court litigation, the 
outcome of which the Company is not able to predict.  
Depending on the outcome of such proceedings and 
litigation, the final amount of such take-or-pay costs 
could be up to $5 million, which would have a material 
adverse effect on the Company's future earnings if the 
PSC were to require the Company to absorb a substantial 
portion thereof.  

Clean Air Act Amendments: The Clean Air Act 
Amendments of 1990 (Amendments) were signed into 
law on November 15, 1990. The Amendments add 
several new programs which address attainment and 
maintenance of national ambient air quality standards.  
This includes control of emissions from fossil-fueled 
electric power plants that affect "acid rain." 

The "acid rain" emissions reduction requirements do 
not affect the Company's generating plants until January 
1, 2000; however, the Company has the option to comply 
with the program as of January 1, 1995.  

The Company is unable to predict the effect (including 
cost) of this legislation since details of the Amendments 
are yet to be established by regulation. However, the 
Amendments could require the Company to expend 
considerable funds in altering its power plant 
operations.

Gas Remediation: The New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation has added to the New York 
State Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites 
six locations at which gas manufacturing plants owned 
or operated by the Company or by predecessors to the 
Company were once located. The Company is under
taking studies of these sites and two additional sites to 
determine whether they contain any hazardous wastes 
which could pose a threat to the environment or public 
health and,' if such wastes are located at such sites, to 
determine the remedial actions which may be appro
priate. Until all studies are completed, the Company 
cannot make any estimate of the costs which might be 
incurred if remedial actions were to be required at any or 
all of these sites. if remedial actions were to be required 
at these sites, the cost thereof could have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company 
if the Company were to be required by the PSC to absorb 
a substantial portion thereof.  

Accrued Employees' Vacation Pay: The Company's 
employees begin accruing vacation in July of each year 
for use in the following year; the monthly accrual of days 
is based on the number of years of service for each 
employee. However, for rate-making purposes, vacation 
pay is recognized as an allowable expense only when 
paid. The Company accrued $3.2 million as of December 
31, 1990 and 1989, as a current liability for an estimate of 
earned vacation pay and consistent with this rate-making 
treatment recorded a deferred charge representing the 
future recoverability of this cost.  

Rental Expenses and Lease Commitments: The 
Company has lease commitments expiring at various 
dates, principally for real property and data processing 
equipment. None of these leases involves any major 
facilities or any material noncancelable rental commit
ments. Although certain items meet the criteria for 
recording as capital leases, such recognition would have 
no significant effect on the financial statements.  
Therefore, all items are treated as operating leases for 
rate-making and accounting purposes.  

NOTE 10 - DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION 

The Company is engaged in the electric and natural 
gas utility businesses and serves New York's Mid
Hudson Valley. Total revenues and operating income 
before income taxes (expressed as percentages), derived 
from electric and gas operations for each of the last three 
years, were as follows:

Percent of 
Total Revenues

1990 
1989 
1988

Electric 
86% 
86% 
87%

Gas 
14% 
149/ 
13%/

Percent of 
Operating Income before 

Income Taxes

Electric 
91% 
94% 
94%

Gas 
9% 
6% 
6%



For the year ended December 31, 1990, the Company 
served an average of 252,017 electric and 56,341 gas 
customers. Of the Company's total electric revenues 
during that period, approximately 36% was derived from 
residential customers, 27% from commercial customers, 
26 % from industrial customers and 11 % from other 
utilities and miscellaneous sources. Of the Company's 
total gas revenues during thadt period, approximately 
44% was derived from residential customers, 30% from 
commercial customers, 7% from industrial customers, 
16% from interruptible customers and 3% from 
miscellaneous sources.

1990

The Company's largest customer is international 
Business Machines Corporation (IBM), which accounted 
for approximately 19% of the Company's total electric 
revenues and approximately 10% of its total gas 
revenues for the year ended December 31, 1990.  

Certain additional information regarding these 
segments is set forth in the following table. General 
corporate expenses, property common to both segments 
and depreciation of such common property have been 
allocated to the segments in accordance with practice 
established for regulatory purposes.

Electric Gas 
1989 1988 1990 1989 1988 

(Thousands of Dollars)

Operating Revenues .............................  

Operating Expenses: 
Fuel and purchased electricity ..............  
Purchased natural gas.........................  
Depreciation and amortization ..............  
Other, excluding income tax ................  

Total ..........................................  

Operating Income before income Tax .........  
Federal Income Tax, including 

deferred income tax - net ....................  

Operating Income.................................  

Construction Expenditures .....................  

Identifiable Assets at December 3 1* 
Net utility plant ...............................  
Construction work in progress..............  

Total Utility Plant ..........................  
Materials and Supplies .......................  

Total ..........................................

$433,859 $403,235 $379,249 $69,749 $66,767 $59,136

155,999 

33,399 
152,790 
342,188

145,835 

32,835 
133,826 
312,496

126,119 

29,636 
127,405 
283,160

38,888 
2,735 

19,523 
6146

39,275 
2,509 

19,347 
61,131

31,981 
2,302 

18,504 
52,787

91,671 90,739 96,089 8,603 5,636 6,349 

20,464 18,826 20,081 1,992 1,002 1,762 

$ 71,207 $ 71,913 $ 76,008 $ 6,611 $ 4,634 $4,587 

$ 42,515 $ 33,443 $ 45,387 $ 8,306 $ 8,644 $ 8,085

$750,102 
33,458 

783,560 
35,004 

$818,564

$759,652 
22,147 

781,799 
22,890 

$804,689

$764,328 
20,639 

784,967 
23,110 

$808,077

$66,777 
4,766 

71,543 
5,578 

$77,121

$61,159 
4,847 

66,006 
6,283 

$72,289

$55,418 
4,518 

59,936 
3,445 

$63,381

*Identifiable assets not included herein are considered to be corporate assets and have not been allocated between the electric and 
gas segments.



NOTE 11 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Selected financial data for each quarterly period within 1989 and 1990 are presented below: 

Earnings Per 
Income Average 

Available Share of 
for Common 

Operating Operating Common Stock 
Revenues Income Stock Outstanding 

(Thousands of Dollars) (Dollars) 

Quarter Ended: 
March 31, 1989..................................... $130,581 $24,485 $13,511 $.93 
June 30, 1989........................................ 111,479 17,764 7,442 .51 
September 30, 1989 ............................... 108,822 18,783 8,102 .55 
December 31, 1989 ................................ 119,120 15,515 4,364 .30 

March 31, 1990..................................... $144,194 $24,499 $13,998 $ .95 

June 30, 1990....................................... 113,813 16,999 6,478 .44 

September 30, 1990 ............................... 118,202 21,125 10,455 .70 
December 31, 1990................................. 127,397 15,194 4,423 .30



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS OF 

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY 

CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM

As shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows, the cash expenditures related to the Company's 
construction program amounted to $49.1 million in 1990, 
an increase of $7.9 million from the $41.2 million 
expended in 1989. Such expenditures were funded from 
internal sources; proceeds from the issuance of common 
stock under the Company's Automatic Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (Dividend 
Reinvestment Plan) and its Customer Stock Purchase 
Plan; and the redemption of temporary cash investments 
which were outstanding at the beginning of the year.

As shown in the table below, cash construction 
expenditures for 1991 are estimated to be $81.2 million, 
an increase of $32.1 million over 1990 expenditures.  
Based on present projections, approximately 78% of the 
1991 expenditures will be funded from internal sources 
and the balance will be financed from external sources.  

Estimates of construction expenditures, internal 
funds, mandatory redemption of long-term securities, 
optional refunding of high coupon debt and working 
capital requirements for the five-year period 1991-1995 
are set forth by year in the following table:

1991

Construction Expenditures (a): 
Electric..........................................  
Gas.............................................  
Common ......................................  
Connection to Iroquois Gas Pipeline...  
Roseton Buy-back...........................  
Nuclear Fuel ...............  

Total ....................................  

Internal Funds Available: 
Depreciation Accruals ......................  
Deferred Income Tax-Net..................  
Other...........................................  

Total ....................................  

Excess of Construction Expenditures over 
Internal Funds.................................  

Mandatory Redemption of 
Long-Term Securities: 

Long-Term Debt.............................  
Preferred Stock..............................  

Total ....................................  

Optional Refunding of High 
Coupon Debt..................................  

Working Capital Requirements .............  

Total Cash Requirements .....................

$ 43,400 
6,200 

16,000 
11,700 

3,900 
81,200 

38,600 
12,400 
12,600 
63,600

1992 

$ 49,600 
5,700 

21,500 
1,300 

900 
79,000, 

41,300 
10,400 
14,900 
66,600

1993 1994 
(Thousands of -Dollars)

$ 40,400 
6,100 

11,000 

3,500 
61,000 

43,900 
9,100 
9,500 

6_2,500

$ 37,000 
6,200 

11,600 

6,300 
900 

62, 00 0 

46,000 
9,100 

12,300 
6_ 7,400

17,600 12,400 (1,500) (5,400)

4,100 

4,100 

45,000 

12,000

4,100 

4,100

4,100 
800 

4,900

54,100 
800 

54,900

7,000 4,000 4,000

$ 78,700 $ 23,500

Total 
1995 1991-1995

$42,100 
6,100 

11,900 

6,000 
3,600 

69, 70 0 

47,900 
9,000 

12,900 
69,800 

(100) 

6,500 
800 

7,300

$212,500 
30,300 
72,000 
13,000 
12,300 
12,800 

352,900 

217,700 
50,000 
62,200 

329,900 

23,000 

72,900 
2,400 

75,300

- 45,000 

4,000 31,000

$ 7,400 $ 53,500 $ 11,200 $174,300

(a) Excluding allowance for funds used during construction (AFDC), a noncash item.



Estimates of construction expenditures are subject to 
continuous review and adjustment and actual 
construction expenditures may vary from such estimates.  
The depreciation accrual for the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
assumes a 2.5% annual rate applied to the allowed 
investment included in rate base. The assumed 
amortization rate for the Danskammrer coal reconversion 
investment is 5%. The deferred income tax projections 
are based on federal income tax law under the Tax 
Reform Act of 1986.  

As shown in the table above, it is presently estimated 
that funds available from internal sources will finance 
93% of the Company's cash construction expenditures 
for the five-year period 1991-1995. During this same 
five-year period, total external financing requirements 
are projected to amount to $174.3 million, of which 
$117.9 million is related to the redemption of long-term 
debt.  

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

Prior to 1987, the Company's policy with regard to 
capital structure was to maintain its common equity ratio 
in the 40%-45% range. As a result of the Company's 
recognizing the Nine Mile 2 Plant disallowance for 
financial reporting purposes in 1987 and recording a 
write-off of $169.3 million in its financial statements, the 
common equity component of the Company's capital 
structure dropped from 46.4% at December 31, 1986 to 
35.4% at December 31, 1987.  

As shown in the table below, the Company has been 
gradually rebuilding its common equity ratio through 
retained earnings and the issuance of common stock 
under its Dividend Reinvestment and Customer Stock 
Purchase Plans.  

Year-end Capital Structure

Long-term Debt......  
Short-term Debt ....  
Preferred Stock ....  
Common Equity ....

1988 1989 1990 

53.6% 52.8% 48.2% 
- - 3.3 
9.6 9.5 9.5 

36.8 37.7 39.0 
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The Company plans to accelerate this rebuilding 
process in 1991 by selling additional common stock 
through a public underwritten offering to refinance a 
portion of the high coupon debt that has been or will 
be called for optional redemption. Such sale will not 
only strengthen the Company's capital structure but 
also improve its coverage ratios. Improvement in these 
two key financial indices should assist the Company in 
its goal of regaining its "A-" credit ratings.

1991 FINANCING PROGRAM 

On December 4, 1990, the Company optionally 
redeemed, at par, its 13% Series First Mortgage Bonds 
($35 million principal amount) due December 4, 1992.  
The funds to redeem these bonds were obtained from a 
combination of short-term debt, the liquidation of 
temporary cash investments and the sale of accounts 
receivables. Such short-term debt, however, will be 
retired in 1991 from the proceeds of the financing 
program discussed below.  

On June 12, 1991, the Company has the option to 
redeem its 14 5/8% Series First Mortgage Bonds ($45 
million principal amount) due June 12, 1994. These 
bonds may not be redeemed at the option of the 
Company prior to June 12, 1991, but may be redeemed 
on and after June 12, 1991 and prior to June 12, 1992 at 
a redemption price of 103.25% of their prinicipal 
amount. The Company views such redemption pro
visions as favorable in light of existing conditions in 
the credit markets and plans to take advantage of this 
opportunity and redeem such bonds on June 12, 199 1.  

Thus the Company will need to refinance $80 
million of high coupon debt during 1991. The 
Company proposes issuing a combination of common 
stock and long-term debt to accomplish this refi
nancing. With regard to the common stock financing, 
the Company has already received authorization from 
the PSC to issue up to 600,000 shares of additional 
common stock. The present timetable for such offering 
provides for the issuance of such stock sometime during 
the first half of 1991. With regard to the long-term debt, 
the Company contemplates issuing up to $70 million of 
new long-term debt which may be in the form of first 
mortgage bonds, unsecured debt or a combination 
thereof. A petition for authorization to issue up to $100 
million of such debt has been filed with the PSC. It is 
presently planned that the new debt will be issued 
before June 30, 1991. Any remaining cash requirements 
for 1991 will be met through short-term borrowings 
and the issuance of common stock under the Company's 
Dividend Reinvestment and Customer Stock Purchase 
Plans.  

SHORT-TERM DEBT AND SALE OF RECEIVABLES 

As more fully discussed in Note 4 to the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements (Notes), the Company 
has entered into a new revolving credit agreement with 
four commercial banks for borrowing up to $50 million 
through December 14, 1997. In addition, the Company 
continues to maintain confirmed lines of credit totaling 
$2 million with three regional banks.  

As discussed in Note 8 to the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, the Company also has the ability to 
sell its accounts receivables from sales to retail customers to 
accelerate its cash flow, when deemed desirable.



RATE PROCEEDING - ELECTRIC

On May 26, 1989, the Company filed a request with 
the PSC to increase its rates for electric service to 
produce additional annual revenue of $21.6 million, or 
5.7%. The higher rates were requested to cover 
increases in capital and operating costs, projected for 
the twelve-month period May,1, 1990 through April 30, 
1991 (the Rate Year), that are not adequately provided 
for in present rates and will not be offset by increased 
revenues from sales.  

The Company's filing was based on a return on 
common equity of 13.85%, an overall return on 
invested capital of 10.85% anda targeted cash coverage 
of total interest charges of 2.6 times. During the course 
of the proceeding, primarily as a result of changes in 
the capital markets, the Company lowered its requested 
return on common equity to 12.75% and its targeted 
cash coverage level to 2.5 times (the target level 
adopted in the Company's last rate case). Also, as a 
result of the Company's agreeing to extend the 
suspension period by one month, the rate year was 
accordingly shifted by one month to the twelve-month 
period June 1, 1990 through May 31, 1991 (Rate Year).  

On May 21, 1990, the PSC issued its Opinion and 
Order (Order) with regard to the Company's request. In 
the Order, the PSC authorized the Company to increase 
its base electric revenues by $13.8 million, an increase 
of approximately 3.6%. The new rates became effective 
on May 24, 1990 and are applicable to all usage 
thereafter. The Order authorized a return on common 
equity of 12.1%, an overall rate of return for the Rate 
Year of 10.15%, and provided a cash coverage level of 
2.53 times.  

In its discussion on financial integrity in the Order, 
the PSC recognized that a cash coverage target of 2.5 
times and an authorized return on common equity of 
12.1% would permit the utilizaton of $1.8 million 
(revenue requirement) of Mirror CWIP as arate 
moderator. The PSC concluded "that level of Mirror 
CWIP passback seems unwarranted, given'that Mirror 
CWIP accounting was developed in order to allow us to 
mitigate large increases in rates and the rate increase 
here is less than 4%." Accordingly, the PSC reduced the 
amount of Mirror CWIP passback from $1.8 million to 
$450,000 which provided for an increase in the cash 
coverage level to 2.53 times. The PSC also stated in 
the Order that it was interested in improving the 
Company's credit ratings.  

On June 20, 1990, an intervenor representing an 
industrial customer filed with the PSC a petition 
requesting that the PSC rehear the Order. Said petition 
dealt solely with the allocation of the authorized rate 
increase among different classes of customers. By Order 
issued on August 23, 1990, the PSC denied such 
petition. The time period within which an appeal of 
such denial may be taken has expired without any 
appeal having been taken.

On August 10, 1990, the Company filed a request 
with the PSC to increase its base rates for firm gas 
service to produce additional annual revenue of $6.8 
million based on projected operations during the Rate 
Year comprised of the twelve months ending June 30, 
1992 (Rate Year). This represents an overall increase in 
firm gas revenues of 9.0%.  

The higher rates have been requested to cover costs 
associated with new gas distribution facilities, 
increased operating expenses and higher taxes 
projected for the Rate Year that are not adequately 
provided for in present rates and will not be offset by 
increased revenues from sales.  

In its filing, the Company requested a 13.0% return 
on common equity and a 10.26% return on total 
invested capital. It is not expected that any new gas 
rates resulting from this filing will become effective 
before July 1, 1991.  

The Company's base gas rates were last increased in 
September 1985. Subsequently, the Company decreased 
its base gas rates in September 1987 and agreed to 
freeze such rates for a 40-month period, until at least 
January 1, 1991.  

Based on the Company's proposed allocation 
between-firm customer classes, the proposed increase 
would be approximately 13% for residential customers 
and 5% for commercial/industrial customers. If 
approved as proposed, the rate increase for the typical 
residential gas customer would average 2.4% a year 
when spread out over the nearly six years since the 
Company's last increase.  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following discussion and analysis includes an 
explanation of significant changes in revenues and 
expenses during the years 1988, 1989 and 1990.  
Additional information relating to changes between 
these years is provided in the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements on pages 28 through 42 of this 
Report.  

EARNINGS 

Earnings per share of common stock are shown after 
provision for dividends on preferred stock and are 
computed on the basis of the average number of 
common shares outstanding during the year. The 

number of common shares, the earnings per share,

RATE PROCEEDING - GAS



the percentage change and the rate of return earned on 
average common equity are as follows: 

1988 1989 1990

Average Shares 
Outstanding (000's) ......... 14,473 

Earnings Per Share ............. $ 2.63 
% Increase (Decrease) 

over Prior Year. ........... (I 

Return Earned on Common 
Equity Per Books** .......... 12.7%

14,657 14,850 
$ 2.28 $ 2.38 

(13%) 4% 

10.6% 10.8%

* Excludes effect of adoption of SFAS 90 in 1987.  
** Return on Equity for regulatory purposes differs.  

The 3-cent reduction in 1988 per share earnings, 
when compared to comparable 1987 per share earnings of 
$2.66, resulted primarily from the effects of lower rates of 
return for both the electric and gas departments. The 1988 
results reflected a lower return on common equity for the 
electric department of 12.70/o for the last five months 
of the year compared to the 13.4% return previously 
authorized. Also, the Company's gas rate reduction, 
which became effective on September 1, 1987,,lowered 
the return on common equity for the gas department from 
15.7% to 12.9%. Consequently, 1987 had eight months of 
earnings from the gas business based on a 15.7% return 
on common equity. whereas 1988 earnings were based 
on a 12.9% comm0n equity return for the entire year.  

The 35-cent reduction in 1989 per share earnings 
resulted principally from moderating sales growth and 
expense increases not provided for in the rate-making 
process. Own territory electric sales increased only 
3.5% compared to the year earlier growth rate of 5.3%.  
Residential sales, which provide the highest operating 
margins, increased only 1% compared to an 8% 
increase in 1988. Nine Mile 2 Plant operation and 
maintenance expenses substantially exceeded expense 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Total operating revenues increased $9.3 million (2%) 
in 1988, $31.6 million (7%) in 1989 and $33.6 million 
(7%) in 1990. As shown in the table below in 1988 the 
increase in revenues from higher sales of electricity and 
gas were greater than the reductions resulting from 
lower fuel costs. The 1989 increase in revenues was due 
to increased sales of electricity both within the service 
territory and to other utilities and increased revenues

levels provided for in rates. Also, subsidiary company, 
results were lower in 1989 because 1988 results 
included substantial fee income and investment tax 
credits which were-associated with the completion of 
two major hydroelectric projects at the end of the year.  

The 10-cent per share increase in the 1990 earnings 
resulted primarily from the-increase in base electric rates 
which became effective on May 24, 1990 and the very 
favorable relationship between sales and related production 
costs which the Company experienced in 1990. Sales of 
electricity within the Company's service territory increased 
3.3% during 1990; however, electric generation and 
purchased power only increased 1%. Firm sales of natural 
gas for 1990 remained unchanged from 1989 whereas 
purchases of natural gas were 10% less than the prior year.  

The weather in December 1989 was extremely cold 
which resulted in increased generation of electricity 
and purchases of natural gas. The costs for the 
additional electric generation and gas purchases were 
reflected in the cost of operations in December 1989.  
However, a significant portion of the related sales to 
residential customers and those commercial customers 
read bimonthly were not recorded until their meters 
were read in January and February 1990. Thus the 
increased revenues resulting from the extremely cold 
December weather were recorded in 1990 income 
while the related costs were recorded in 1989.  

The reverse situation occurred in December 1990 due 
to the extremely warm weather that was experienced.  
Production costs were lower in December 1990 because 
of the reduced generation of electricity and purchases of 
natural gas; however, the full revenue effect will not be 
realized until the customers on bimonthly billing have 
their meters read in January and February 1991.  

These favorable variations were partially offset by 
increased operating costs for the Nine Mile 2 Plant. Actual 
costs exceeded those provided for in the rate-making process 
by $5.0 million in 1990 as compared to $2.4 million in 1989.  

collected pursuant to the electric and gas fuel adjust
ment clauses. The 1990 increase in revenues was due to 
increased sales of electricity, the higher -electric base 
rates which became effective May 24, 1990 and 
increased revenues collected pursuant to the electric 
fuel cost adjustment clause. Details of the revenue 
changes are as follows:

Increase or (Decrease) from Prior Year

Custom er sales...............................................  
Sales to other utilities .....................................  
Increases (decreases) in base rates ..............  
Fuel cost changes reflected in base rates .......  
Fuel cost adjustment............- ..................  
Deferred revenues..........................................  
M iscellaneous ..............................................  

Total

1988 

Electric Gas 

$ 17,542 $ 6,343 
(4,028) 

297 (3,117) 
(27,621) 
12,372 (63) 
3,834 3,907 
1,902 (2,060) 

$ 4,298 $ 5,010

1989 

Electric Gas 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

$ 8,772 $4,001 
10,662 
(1,444)

5,072 
462 
462 

$ 23,986

5,929 
(3,451) 
1,152 

$ 7,63 1

1990 
Electric Gas

$ 12,778 
(100) 

7;356 

8,691 
1,235 

664 
$ 30,624

$ 2,186 

(547) 
133 

1,210 
$ 2,982



The Company's electric fuel cost adjustment clause 
provides for a partial sharing of fuel cost variations, 
pursuant to an incentive/penalty formula. The program 
adopted by the PSC requires an 85%/15% sharing, on 
average, between the customers and the Company for 
the first $20 million of variations in actual fuel costs 
from the forecasted amounts which have been approved 
by the PSC for a specific twelve-month period. Any 
variations in excess of $20 million are credited or 
charged in total to the customers. See Note 1, "Deferred 
Electric Fuel Costs." 

The Company's base rates for electricity include an 
imputed amount of net revenue (gross revenues less

incremental costs, principally fuel) from sales of 
electricity to other utilities. The PSC requires an 
80%/20% sharing between customers and the 
Company of any variations from the imputed amount, 
either higher or lower., The Company reflects any 
credits or charges to its customers resulting from these 
provisions through the electric fuel cost adjustment 
clause. The following table sets forth the variation in 
actual net revenue realized from the amounts imputed; 
the amount charged or credited to retail customers 
through the electric fuel cost adjustment clause; and the 
amount of such net revenues retained by the Company 
and recognized'in income:

1988

Variation in Actual Net Revenue from 
Imputed Amounts ......................  

Customer (Charge) Credit ...........................  
Amount Recognized by Company .................  

The Company's largest customer is International 
Business Machines Corporation (IBM). For the year

$ (267,) 
(214 

$_L (53)

1989 
(Thousands of Dollars)

$ 4,499 
3,599 

$ 900

1990

$ 2,337 
1,870 

$ 467

1990, sales to IBM accounted for 19% of the Company's 
total electric revenues and 10% of its total gas revenues.

SALES

Kwh. sales of electricity within the Company's 
service territory increased 5.3% in 1988, 3.5% in 1989 
and 3.3% in 1990. Firm sales of natural gas, excluding 
sales to the electric department, increased 12% in 1988, 
4% in 1989 and remained unchanged in 1990. Changes 
in sales by major customer classification are set forth 
below (parentheses denote decrease):

Residential ........................  
Com m ercial .......................  
Industrial ..........................  

Residential ........................  
Com m ercial .......................  
Industrial ..........................

Electric % 
1988 1989 1990 

8 1 

8 4 2 
2 6 7

1988 

-8 
16

Gas % 
1989 

2 
3

1990 
(3)

16 30 12

Residential electric sales:, Residential electric sales 
are primarily affected by the growth in customers and 
the change in kwh. usage per customer. Customer usage 
is also sensitive to weather. Changes in these 
components are set forth in the following table 
(parentheses denote decrease):

Residential Sales % 
1988 1989 1990

Growth in number 
of customers.... .............  

Change in average usage 
per customer .................  

Change in heating 
degree days .............

3 1

5 (1) (1) 

3 (7) (3)

Commercial electric sales: The 8% increase in 
commercial sales in 1988 reflected a 3% increase in the 
number of customers and a 4% increase in usage per 
customer. The commercial sales increase of 4% in 1989 
and 2% in 1990 was primarily due to growth in the 
number of customers at A rate of 4% and 3%, 
respectively.  

Industrial electric sales: The 2% increase in 1988 
reflected a combination of customer growth and 
increased customerusage. The 1989 increase of 6% was 
primarily due to the increased usage at existing 
manufacturing facilities and a full year's operation of a 
container manufacturer at Stewart International Airport 
which commenced operation in July 1988. The 7%



increase in industrial electric sales in 1990 was due 
primarily to increased usage by existing customers.  

Gas sales - firm: The following tables set forth 
customer growth, changes in customer usage and heat
ing degree days for the residential and commercial clas
sifications. Although the changes in residential gas sales 
are primarily weather related, the growth in customers 
has been a positive factor contributing to increased 
sales. Commercial sales are also weather sensitive.  

Residential Sales (%) 
1988 1989 1990

Growth in number 
of custom ers ..................  

Change in average usage 
per customer ............  

Change in heating 
degree days: 

Bimonthly billing 
cycle..... ...............  

Calendar year ...........

2 

(5)-

(3) (15)

Commercial Sales (o) 
1988 1989 1990

Growth in number 
of customers .............  

Change in average usage 

per customer .................  
Change in heating 

degree days: 
Bimonthly billing 
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Firm gas sales to industrial customers increased 16% 
in 1988 and 30% in 1989, aided primarily by the 
opening in 1988 of the new container manufacturing 
company in the service territory. Firm gas sales to 
industrial customers increased 12% in 1990, primarily 
due to an increase in usage by existing customers.  

Gas sales - interruptible: Interruptible gas sales inc
reased 24% in 1988, 31%,in 1989 and 14% in 1990. The 
increases primarily result from the changes in the com
petitive position of the cost of natural gas for boiler fuel 
usage, as compared to the cost of alternative fuel sources.

NUCLEAR OPERATIONS

The cost of operating and maintaining the Nine Mile 
2 Plant continues to have an adverse effect on the 
Company's earnings. During 1988, 1989 and 1990, the 

'Company's per share earnings were reduced by 6 cents, 
11 cents and 22 cents, respectively, because the cost of 
operating the Plant exceeded the amounts provided for 
in the rate-making process.  

Part of the problem has been that the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
is an immature unit not only in terms of its physical factors 
but also in terms of its operating expense requirements.  
There has notbeen enough actual operating experience 
for the Nine Mile 2 Plant to establish an adequate data 
base to serve as a solid foundation for making future 
forecasts. For example, the Company's share of Nine 
Mile 2 Plant operating and maintenance expenses 
exceeded those provided for in rates by $5.0 million 
during 1990. Of this amount, $2.2 million occurred in

the first five months of the year where the rate 
projections had been based on expense forecasts 
contained in a rate filing made in April 1988. Another 
$1.5 million was related to the substantial overrun in the 
expenses forecasted for the Plant's first refueling outage.  
Additional operating experience will help solve this 
problem as will the many improvements made in the 
budgeting and forecasting processes by the cotenants.  

The Company has continued to actively pdrticipate on 
the management, operations and accounting committees 
for the Nine Mile 2 Plant and also the financial task 
force dealing with regulatory issues. While such 
participation should help to produce better forecasts 
and control costs, it must be recognized that to 
minimize its effect on the Company's financial 
condition, the Nine Mile 2 Plant must operate as an 
efficient, economical and reliable plant.



OPERATING EXPENSES 

Changes in operating expenses from the prior year are set forth below:

1988 
Amount %

Increase or (Decrease) from Prior Year 
1989

Amount % 
(Thousands of Dollars)

Am
1990 

ount %

Operating Expenses: 
Fuel and purchased electricity .........  
Purchased natural gas .......... ....................  
Other expenses of operation................  
M aintenance ..............................................  
NMP-2 operation and maintenance ......  
Depreciation and amortization..............  
Taxes, other than income tax ................  
Federal income tax ......................  

Total

The most significant elements of cost are fuel and 
purchased electricity in the Electric Department and 
purchased natural gas in the Gas Department. Approxi, 
mately 33% in 1988 and 36% in 1989 and 1990 of every 
revenue dollar billed in the Electric Department was 
expended for the combined cost of fuel used in electric 
generation and purchased electricity. The corresponding 
figures in the Gas Department for the cost of purchased 
gas are 54%, 59% and 56%, respectively.  

The $8 million (6%) decrease in 1988 of the 
combined cost of fuel used in electric generation and 
purchased electricity reflects the effects of lower fuel 
costs resulting from the use of low-cost nuclear fuel 
at the Nine Mile 2 Plant, the burning of coal at 
Danskammer Units 3 and 4 for a full year and a, 
decrease in more costly purchases from other utilities 
due to the availability of more Company-owned 
generation. In 1989 the combined cost of fuel used in 
electric generation and the purchased electricity 
increased $20 million (15.6 %); resulting from increased 
sales of electricity both within the service territory and 
to other utilities, and higher fuel prices. In 1990 the 
combined cost of fuel used in electric generation and 
the purchased electricity increased $10 million (7%) 
resulting primarily from higher fuel prices and related 
costs for purchased power.,

The following table shows the average cost per 
million Btu for the Company's three major generating 
plants during the last five years:

1986 

1987 

1988 
1989 

1990

Average Cost ($/Million Btu) 
Nine Mile 

Danskammer Plant Roseton Plant 2 Plant 
2.93 2.56 
2.26 2.95 
2.13 2.35 1.16 
2.17 2.67 1.04 
2.30 3.01 1.09

In an effort to keep the cost of electricity at the 
lowest reasonable level, the Company purchases energy 
from member companies of the New York Power Pool 
whenever such energy can be purchased at a unit cost 
lower than the incremental cost of generating the 
energy in the Company's plants.

$(7,953) 
4,850 
6,665 
1,449 
6,497 
3,775 
3,574 

(9,633) 
$ 9,224

(5.9) 
17.9 
10.6 

7.0 

13.4 
8.1 

(30.6) 
(2.6)

$19,716 
7,294 
1,275 
(691) 

3,393 
3,406 

3,287 

$35,665

15.6 
22.8 

1.8 
(3.1) 

52.2 
10.7 
6.9 

(9.2) 
10.0

$10,164 
(387) 

2,898 

5,005 
5,243 

790 
5,994 
2,628 

$32,335

7.0 
(1.0) 
4.1 

23.4 

53.1 
2.2 

11.7 
13.3 

8.2



The amount of natural gas purchased, excluding gas 
burned as boiler fuel, and the cost per Mcf. during the 
last five years are set forth in the following table:

Year 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990

Amount of Gas 
Purchased - Mcf.  

9,387,520 
9,420,874 

11,004,936 
12,402,848 
11,813,255

$/Mcf.  
3.64 
3.04 
3.00 
3.22 
3.37

The lower volumes of gas purchased during 1986 
and 1987 result from lower sales of interruptible gas.  

The $6.7 million (1I"%) increase for.19881n other 
expenses of operation was 1primarily due to higher 
employee wages and related fringe benefits, increased 
cost of-the Company's end use efficiency program, 
higher insurance costs, increased costs incurred in 
connection with complying with environmental 
regulations and the fees paid for the sale of accounts 
receivables. The fees for the accounts receivables 
program, which amounted to $3.3 million in 1988, 
however, are offset by savings in the cost of capital. The 
$1.3 million (2%) increase in 1989 was primarily due 
to increased charge-offs for uncollectibles, higher 
employee wages and related fringe benefits, increased 
cost of the Company's end use efficiency program, 
higher legal costs and increased costs associated with 
environmental regulations compliance. The $2.9 

million (4%) increase in other expenses of operation in 
1990 is primarily due to higher employee wages and 
related fringe benefits, increased research and develop
ment expenses, increased charge-offs for uncollectibles 
and an increase in the cost for asbestos abatement.  

The $1.4 million (7%) increase in 1988 maintenance 
expense was primarily due to a $2.0 million increase in 
the cost for maintaining the Company's generating 
units. This increase reflected a major overhaul of Unit 1 
at the Roseton Plant and an additional normal overhaul 
at the Danskammer Plant because Unit 3 was 
undergoing reconversion to coal-firing in 1987 and, 
consequently, did not require its annual overhaul.  
Maintenance expenses for the rest of the Company's 
facilities were $600,000 less than 1987 because 1987 
expenses included $1.24 million for an abnormal 
'October snowstorm. Maintenance expenses for1989 
decreased $691,000 (3%) primarily due to a decrease in 
tree-trimming costs and the coipletion of the amor
tization of Sturgeon Pool Dam rehabilitation costs 
during 1988. In 1990, maintenance expenses increased 
$5.0 million (23%) primarily due to increases in steam 
production expenses and tree-trimming costs. The 
increases in steam production maintenance expense

($2.7 million) are primarily due to increased costs for 
routine maintenance of the Danskammer Generating 
Units and the costs for a major overhaul of Danskammer 
Unit 1 which began in December of 1990. The increased 
tree-trimming expenses ($1.3 million) resulted from the 
intensified program instituted by the Company in the 
spring of 1990 whereby the trimming cycle for all 
electric distribution lines was reduced from four years 
to three years.  

The Nine Mile 2 Plant commenced commercial 
operation on April 5, 1988. Consequently, operating 
expenses, taxes and depreciation pertaining to 
operation subsequent to 'that date have been included 
in the Company's financial results for 1988, 1989 and 
1990. Many of the additional expenses were provided 
for through the rate-making process. However, as noted 
in the above discussion on Nuclear Operation, the 
operation and maintenance expenses exceeded the 
amounts provided for in rates by $1.4 million for 1988, 
$2.4 million for 1989 and $5.0 million for 1990 and, 
consequently, reduced earnings by 6 cents, 11 cents and 
22 cents, respectively, in each of these three years.  

The Company's total provision for depreciation 
amounted to 3.37% in 1988, 3.28% in 1989 and 3.24% 
in 1990 of the original cost of average depreciable 
property. The 1988 provision reflects the 
commencement of depreciation on the Nine Mile 2 
Plant and an increase in the amortization rate for the 
Danskammer Coal Reconversion Project from 3.4% to 
5.0%, effective August 1, 1988. The ratio of the amount 
of accumulated depreciation to the cost of depreciable 
property at December 31 was 26.2% in 1988, 28.2% in 
1989 and 29.9% in 1990. The decrease in this ratio for 
1988 from the 1987 ratio of 34.9% reflects the transfer 
of the Nine Mile 2 Plant investment from construction 
work in progress to plant in service.  

State and local taxes levied on gross revenues 
decreased $66,000 in 1988, increased $860,000 in 1989 
and increased $3.86 million in 1990. The 1990 increase 
was due primarily to the 15% New York State Revenue 
Tax Surcharge which amounted to $2.6 million.  
Property taxes, including school taxes, increased $4.3 
million, $2.3 million and $1.5 million in 1988, 1989 
and 1990, respectively. The commencement of 
commercial operations of the Nine Mile 2 Plant 
accounted for $2.3 million, $1.2 million and $391,000, 
respectively, of such increases. The Temporary 
Metropolitan Business Tax Surcharge decreased 
$298,000 in 1988, increased $131,000 in 1989 and 
increased $24,000 in 1990. These three categories of 
taxes accounted for the substantial portion of the total 
increases in operating taxes.  

See Note 3 for a detailed analysis and reconciliation 
of the federal income tax.



'4OTHER INCOME AND INTEREST CHARGES 

Details of the Allowance for Funds used During 
Construction are set forth below: 

Nine Mile 2 Plant ..............................................  
Other ............................................................  

Total ..........................................................  

Weighted Average Rate.......................................  

See Notes 1 and 2 for additional information on this subject.

Total interest charges (excluding AFDC) decreased 
$2.9 million (7%/) in 1988, increased $1.4 million (3%) 
in 1989 and decreased $60 1,000 (1%) in 1990. The 

Long-Term Debt: 
New Debt Issued ...........................................  
Debt Retired .................................................  
Outstanding at Year-end:* 

Amount (including current portion).................  
Effective Cost.............................................  

Short-Term Debt: 
Average Daily Amount Outstanding ...................  
Weighted Average interest Rate .........................

1988

$320 
674 

$994 

9.11%

1989 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

$591 
301 

$892 

10.25%

1990 

$ 910 
770 

$1,680 

10.2 5%

following table sets forth some of the pertinent data on 
the Company's outstanding debt:

1988

$ 16,700 
21,620 

450,330 
9.22% 

$ 3,598 
7.84%

1989 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

449,208 
19.47%

$ 55 
10.0%

1990 

35,000 

413,528 
8.9 1% 

$ 2,048 
8.98%

*Including debt of subsidiaries of $6.825 million in 1988, $5.786 million in 1989 and $5.188 million in 1990.  

See Notes 4 and 6 for additional information on this subject.  

FINANCIAL INDICES 

Selected financial indices for the last five years are set 
forth in the following table:

Pretax Coverage of Total interest Charges: 
Including AFDC ........... I...................  
Excluding AFDC ..................................  

Pretax Coverage of Total interest Charges 
and Preferred Stock Dividends ....................  

Percent of Construction Expenditures 
Financed from internal Funds.....................  

AFDC and Mirror CWIP as a Percentage 
of Income Available for Common Stock .........  

Effective Tax Rate ........................................

* For comparative purposes the effect of the Nine Mile 2 Plant disallowance under SFAS 90 has been excluded.

The earnings tests contained in certain of the 
Company's long-term debt instruments have not been 
affected by the Nine Mile 2 Plant disallowance. The

earnings for such tests have been calculated exclusive of 
the effect of the Nine Mile 2 Plant write-off.

1986 

3. 14x 
2.43x 

2.66x 

17% 

55% 
34%

1987* 

2.70x 
2. 56x 

2.23x 

53% 

16% 
42%

1988 

2.5 8x 
2.53x 

2. 14x 

100% 

5% 
33%

1989 

2.3 6x 
2.2 7x 

1.99x 

100% 

11% 
33%

1990 

2.46x 
2.39x 

2.06x 

100% 

9% 
33%



L1 kCOMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS AND PRICE RANGES

Dividends have been paid by the Company and its principal predecessors for 87 years, and the common stock of 
the Company has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange since 1945. The price ranges and the dividends paid 
for each quarterly period during the Company's last two fiscal years were as follows:

First Quarter........................  
Second Quarter.....................  
Third Quarter ......................  
Fourth Quarter .....................

High 
$223/8 

227/8 
231/4 

241/

1989 
Low.  
$207/8 

203/8 
221/8 
22

Dividend 
$.44 

.44 

.44 

.44

High 
$237/8 

22 7/s 
23 / 
24/8

1990 
Low 
$2 1%/ 

20/8 
20 
211/

Dividend 
$.44 

.44 

.46 

.46

On December 16, 1988, the Company increased the 
quarterly dividend payable February 1, 1989 to $.44 per 
share. The Company further increased the dividend on 
June 22, 1990 to $.46. The Company believes the 
present quarterly dividend rate of $.46 per share is 
sustainable, barring unforeseen circumstances. in all 
events, the Board. of Directors will continue to consider 
the declaration of dividends based on all the facts and 
circumstances known at the time of such consideration.  

The number of registered holders of common stock 
as of December 31, 1990 was 27,935. Of these, 27,526 
were accounts in the names of individuals with total 
holdings of 6,648,274 shares, or an average of 242 
shares per account. The 409 other accounts, in the 
names of institutional or other nonindividual holders, 
for the most part hold shares for the benefit of 
individuals.

The Company's 4.85% Promissory Notes due 
December 1, 1995 contain limitations upon the right of 
the Company to declare or pay any dividend or make 
any other distribution on (other than dividends or 
distributions payable in common stock), or acquire, for 
a consideration, any shares of its common stock unless 
the aggregate of all such dividends, distributions and 
considerations since December 31, 1964 does not exceed 
an amount determined by a formula. At December 3 1, 
1990, the amount of retained earnings available for 
dividends on the Company's common stock under the 
provisions of said 4.85% Promissory Notes was 
$32,198,000.
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AFFIRMTIVE CTIONPOLIC 

Central~~~S HdnGa ElcrcCroainafrstaeqaoprunsalbprvddfrlleso.Thsmnsttal 

Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation affirms that itqwil npornty dsriminae gaidayempoe for allppls.Tian ort emloyen 

because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for which the individual is qualified. This means that all personnel 
policies and practices, including those related to employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, training, compensation, benefits and 
termination, shall be administered without discrimination based upon physical or mental handicap against qualified individuals.


